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The Company

Sirona acquired one of China’s three largest manufacturers of treatment

centers, transferring it to Sirona Dental Systems (Foshan) Co. Ltd. in

November 2004. 

To further support our sales activity in the Asia-Pacific market, Sirona

incorporated new subsidiaries in Japan and in Australia. 

In November 2004, Sirona founded SiCAT GmbH & Co. KG, Bonn to

focus on the development of 3D X-ray technology. The research center

caesar (center of advanced European studies and research) in Bonn is a

shareholder.

Sirona entered into a cooperation for individual implant prosthetics with

the Swiss company Straumann, a global leader in individualized implant

prosthodontics. 

In April 2005, Sirona had one of the most visited booths at IDS in

Cologne, the world’s leading dental trade show. At the event, Sirona

introduced a multitude of new developments and recorded a high 

order intake, thus enjoying its most successful IDS trade show ever. 

The Sirona management team, in conjunction with private equity com-

panies Madison Dearborn Partners (MDP) and Beecken Petty O’Keefe,

acquired the Sirona Group from the private equity firm EQT in April

2005.

In July a contract has been signed for the construction of a new office

building in Bensheim, Germany. The 29,900 square foot building will

house administrative offices and Sirona’s Dental Academy.

In September 2005 Sirona signed an agreement to acquire the 

U.S.-based Schick Technologies, a leading imaging specialist. The trans-

action is structured as a ”Reverse Merger“.

New Products 

CEREC Chairline: A seamless integration of our advanced dental

CAD/CAM system into Sirona’s M1+ and C2+ treatment centers, 

delivering enhanced ergonomics and improved patient communications. 

CEREC Crown: Advanced software to build and manufacture ceramic

crowns on-site – directly at the dental practice in a single patient visit. 

inEos: An extraoral scanner that streamlines the process of creating

CAD/CAM restorations for dental labs. 

PerioScan: A worldwide industry first: an all-in-one ultrasonic scaling

unit, enabling both diagnosis and treatment of calculus with a single

device. 

SIROLaser: A versatile, compact, handy diode laser that can be used 

in endodontics, periodontology and oral surgery.

SIROEndo: Another industry first: a root canal preparation unit that

can be attached onto any treatment center.

IMPLANT: A series of special contra-angle handpieces for implantology

and oral surgery, ensuring optimum speed and torque for milling and

drilling procedures.

ORTHOPHOS XGPlus with TSA Option: A sophisticated yet simple

digital imaging center that offers a view into third dimension of the

tooth, in combination with panoramic images.

SIDEXIS XG with ImplantPlus: An advanced version of image 

processing software featuring a new plug-in for the graphical 

visualization of implants. 

ProFeel+: A new concept in prophylaxis – a German-engineered 

hygiene center for preventive treatment that combines elegant aesthe-

tics with versatile integrated technology.

The Highlights of 2004|05



At a Glance

Sirona Group key figures

in million € 2004|05* 2003|04* 2002|03 2001|02 2000|01

Sales 364.8 319.9 283.9 272.0 277.7 

Research and development expenses 25.9 23.8 20.6 20.3 18.7 

Cost of materials 184.1 155.9 137.2 135.4 151.1

Personnel expenses 99.2 88.8 83.5 74.9 77.7 

Interest and similar expenses* 48.9 27.0 10.3 9.7 12.8 

Result from ordinary activities* -33.4 -3.2 28.8 18.9 19.8 

Extraordinary result* -11.5 -9.4 -2.6 -0.9 -1.8

Income taxes / Other taxes* 16.2 -0.9 -6.5 -10.6 -3.7 

Net income of the year* -28.2 -13.5 19.6 7.2 14.3 

Subscribed capital and capital reserves* 103.6 45.5 62.8 62.8 89.7 

Employees 1,699 1,447 1,330 1,324 1,334 

EBIT (adjusted)** 72.9 61.3 51.6 43.8 46.5

EBITDA (adjusted)*** 83.7 71.4 60.8 52.6 55.1 

* When comparing Sirona’s performance, only operating results should be considered, as the changes in ownership in November 2003 and April

2005 have non-operating effects on the financial results. The acquisition of Sirona by its management team and private equity groups Madison

Dearborn Partners (MDP) and Beecken Petty O’Keefe was funded, as is typical for such a transaction, by both equity and debt. The financial

structure was reorganized and the new Group was consolidated as of June 30, 2005 for the first time. These factors had a significant impact on

Sirona’s balance sheet and its profit-and-loss statement. Affected, for example, are the results of operating activities and the annual result, which

was at minus 28 million euros. However, adjusted operating earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization and extra-

ordinary expenses (adjusted EBITDA) rose by 17 percent to 84 million euros year over year. 

Due to the change of ownership financial figures for the financial years of 2003/04 and 2004/05 are stated on a pro-forma basis. Further details

are provided in the notes to the financial statement.

** EBIT before step-up depreciation, extraordinary results and depreciations, and currency losses on the U.S. dollar-denominated bank loan

***EBITDA before extraordinary results and currency losses on the U.S. dollar-denominated bank loan
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A recognized innovator in the dental industry, Sirona is a strong partner for

dental practices, clinics and laboratories. We deliver a full range of leading-

edge equipment and dental systems that set international standards for 

efficiency and ergonomics. We address our customers’ needs by maintaining 

a constant dialogue with them, and a close relationship with our distribution

partners. We also continuously expand our own experience and expertise 

with that of top research institutions and companies, who share our commit-

ment to customer-oriented innovation. 

Strength. Partnership. Success.



Sirona is one of the world’s leading manufacturers of dental equipment –

developing, producing and marketing a full range of advanced treatment 

centers, imaging systems, handpieces, hygiene systems and dental CAD/CAM

systems. We draw upon more than 125 years of experience and extensive 

global expertise via our 1,700 employees located around the world. Today,

Sirona products are widely used by dental practices, clinics and laboratories 

in over 100 countries worldwide. 
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As the dental industry continues to grow, Sirona is positioned to take full advan-

tage of global market opportunities by strengthening its capabilities with leading

industry partnerships, top-quality products, and a strong worldwide presence. 

Partnership Means Opportunity.
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At the globally renowned International Dental Show (IDS) in Cologne,

Germany in April, we showcased our leadership in innovation with a

variety of new products for diverse applications. Sirona proved its exper-

tise in developing cutting-edge solutions that address the most current

industry trends - such as the increased use of digital systems in the den-

tal practice, and the continued integration of new functionalities into

dental treatment centers, like the CEREC Chairline. Sirona’s latest

releases also reflect our dedication to user comfort, as well as practical

workflow optimization. As a result, dental practices and laboratories

around the world can rely on Sirona to deliver products that increase

their productivity and their profitability. 

The acquisition of the Sirona Group by the management team and the

U.S. investment companies Madison Dearborn Partners (MDP) and

Beecken Petty O’Keefe set the stage for our continued growth. In

September, we signed an agreement to merge with leading imaging

specialist Schick Technologies, Inc. With this major step, Sirona is posi-

tioned to gain additional exposure and awareness on a global scale.

Schick is listed on the NASDAQ National Market. The future Sirona

Dental Systems, Inc. will therefore be listed on the U.S. technology stock

exchange, benefiting from access to the world’s most active capital 

market, and positioning Sirona for ongoing corporate expansion. 

Sirona continued to grow in 2004/05, thanks to a strong market response

to our innovative product line, and strategic investments that expanded

our international presence. We increased our corporate revenues by 14

percent to 365 million euros, while simultaneously raising our profitability.

Our new subsidiaries in Japan and Australia strengthened our sales

infrastructure in Asia-Pacific. We continue to expect a solid development

of the dental sector.

We make investments in our own growth. At the same time, we contin-

uously streamline our costs; and our financial data show that. The 

adjusted EBITDA totaled 84 million euros – a 17 percent increase. Cash

flow from operating activities, excluding cash-effective interest and tax

expenses, increased by 35 percent to 80 million euros. 

Sirona is well positioned in all key markets for continued internal and

external growth.

From the Management Team

»Three major highlights for us this year

were the launch of our latest innovations,

the buy-out of Sirona by management

and MDP, and the agreement on the

merger with Schick.« Jost Fischer

»Sirona can look back on another year

of profitable growth. We are well posi-

tioned in all of our major markets, so

Sirona is poised for continued internal

and external growth.« Simone Blank 
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From Japan and China to Europe, the U.S. and Australia – Sirona has 

consistently expanded its geographical presence over the last years. 

Today, Sirona is truly a global company. 

This expansion comes with a new set of requirements for our products,

our organization, our communication and the qualifications of our staff. 

This year, we added 252 new employees in locations around the globe.

We also expanded our emphasis on intercultural training, ensuring that our

team can communicate effectively across borders, wherever they are. 

As has always been the practice here at Sirona, we continue to encourage

all of our employees to become actively involved in the company’s future

giving each and every member of the team an opportunity to personally

contribute to our company’s success and to strengthen the global position

of Sirona.

Jost Fischer 

Chairman, President

and CEO

Simone Blank

Executive Vice President 

and CFO 

Theo Haar 

Executive Vice President 

HR&Services 

»To me, the continued globalization of

Sirona means that people all over the

world are working around the clock for

our success. Mutual trust and under-

standing across borders are therefore of

key importance.« Theo Haar 



For over 125 years now, Sirona stands for innovation in the dental industry.

Our success has been built by drawing continously on a strong team of

employees, and a growing, global network of leading development partners. 

Partnership Means Strength.





We cooperate with top clinical institutions to

develop user-friendly dental equipment; inte-

grate the needs of our global distributors into

the comprehensive training concepts used in

our Dental Academy; and work closely with

leading manufacturers of high-quality dental

materials for CAD/CAM restorations, to name

a few examples. As a result, we are able to

infuse our technological innovations with cut-

ting-edge ideas, maximizing customer value. 

Expanding Our Expertise Through
Our Partner Relationships

One example of the many exciting develop-

ments created in conjunction with our partners

is PerioScan, which was launched in April at the

International Dental Show (IDS) event in

Cologne, Germany. As the premier trade show

for the dental industry worldwide, the 2005 IDS

featured over 1,500 exhibitors and 75,000

attendees. One of the highlights of the show

was the Sirona booth, which drew large crowds.

The main attractions were the unique product

innovations, that were on display. 

PerioScan is the result of a collaboration be-

tween Sirona and two leading German univer-

sities, some of whose scientists joined the

Sirona team at IDS to unveil the new product.

PerioScan is an intelligent, ultrasonic scaling

unit for the all-in-one diagnosis and treatment

of subgingival calculus. Until now, dentists

needed separate handpieces for each phase 

of this procedure. As a result, they would

often detect calculus in gingival pockets with

one device, only to lose the exact spot that

needed treatment when switching to a differ-

ent device for removal. PerioScan changes

that, offering a built-in sensor that sends out

an optical and an acoustic signal as soon as 

it detects calculus. Dentists then immediately

switch to the therapy mode, and can start

scaling the calculus using the same handpiece.

This offers a major advancement in the gentle

and safe therapy of periodontitis – one of the

major causes in tooth loss for people aged 

40 and over, and a contributor to many other

organic diseases. 

Before it was developed, the concept for

PerioScan alone was enough to garner a prize

at a competition sponsored by the German

Ministry for Research and Technology to 

promote medical innovations in 2000. For the

next five years, Sirona worked closely with 

its partners to develop the concept, and 

bring PerioScan to market, working with the

Technical University of Clausthal on technical

10 | 11

Leading Innovation – With Strong Partnerships 

Sirona launched multiple product innovations at the world’s largest dental trade show, IDS, in Cologne, Germany. 

At Sirona, we leverage a unique combination of resources to deliver innovation and

achieve success. In addition to our own team's expertise, we draw on a network of

strategic partners to provide state-of-the-art solutions to our customers. 
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matters and the dental faculty at the University

of Greifswald on clinical testing. “We are an

especially sought-after partner in clinical coop-

erations, because the expertise and experience

of our developers allows them to work on the

same level as leading researchers. Our approach

is further strengthened by the continuous inte-

gration of customer feedback, as early as

during the development process,” explains says

Ralf Sutter, R&D Handpieces. Together with

these partners, we collaborated to build a pro-

duct that could combine medical requirements

with technical parameters, and fulfill critical

safety and admission criteria. We also focused

on making our product flexible enough to be

adapted to different local treatment methods

worldwide, and ensure international success.

This year, the first release of PerioScan was

launched successfully to customers around the

world. Additional launches are already being

planned for key markets such as Japan and

the U.S.

Timing is critical for the successful launch of 

a new product. This year, Sirona introduced

the SIROLaser: a compact yet powerful diode

laser that can be used in a variety of dental

applications. In oral surgery, for example, 

it ensures gentle treatments with minimum

bleeding. In periodontology, it helps to reduce

germs in gingival pockets following periodonti-

tis therapy with the PerioScan. 

“Laser technology was introduced to the den-

tal market a while ago; but at Sirona, we did

not want to deliver a laser product until the

technology fully satisfied our stringent require-

ments for both efficiency and user comfort.

The SIROLaser does just that,“ says Jan Siefert,

Head of Handpieces, Sirona. 

What makes the SIROLaser so unique? While

similar products on the market may be compa-

rable in power and performance, they are typi-

cally cumbersome - often as big as a PC tower.

Our diode laser, in contrast, fits in the palm of

the user’s hand, and weighs just one pound.

This is due to the SIROLaser’s core technology,

which was developed in conjunction with Eltech,

our partner for advanced electronics manufactur-

ing based in Italy. The SIROLaser uses a mono

diode for power, rather than several bundled 

diodes that would require the inclusion of a com-

prehensive – and bulky – cooling system.

Prior to its launch, the SIROLaser was tested

extensively in the clinic for tooth preservation,

periodontology and preventative dentistry at

the University Hospital in Aachen, Germany,

where it was used in a number of applications,

including root canal treatments and implant

exposure. The scientists at the clinic unan-

»As the dental innovation leader, Sirona

attracts top talent and partners to drive

our product development efforts.«

Ralf Sutter, R&D Handpieces

PerioScan, an intelligent ultrasonic system, is an innovation for treating periodontitis. SIROLaser, a compact diode laser, fits in the palm of a hand. 
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»For our products to be successful, it is

imperative that everyone involved

understands each others’ needs, and 

the needs of our users.«

Susanne Schmidinger, Sales Training

imously praised the practicality and ease-of-

use of the SIROLaser, which features an intui-

tive user menu, and predefined parameters for

the most common dental indications. With this

strong start, and a successful launch at the

IDS, the SIROLaser has already generated a lot

of interest from Sirona dealers and customers.

Offering a Communications Hub
to Customers and Partners 

The Sirona Dental Academy is a vibrant infor-

mation center that sets a standard, for the

dental industry. Over the past year, the Dental

Academy, located in Bensheim, Germany, held

more than 400 product trainings, conducted

by Sirona staff members as well as specialists

from leading universities and dental practices. 

The Dental Academy is also an important

forum for user feedback and communication

that enables us to always stay on the pulse of

the dental market. It is at the Dental Academy

that our developers and marketers receive

direct, unfiltered input from dentists, service

technicians and other members of the dental

trade – all of which is incorporated directly

into the development and enhancement of 

our products. 

“For our products to be successful, it is impera-

tive that everyone involved with them – from

our developers and production staff, to our

distributors and their service technicians –

understands each others’ needs, and the needs

of our users,” says Susanne Schmidinger, who

manages the training program for Sirona’s sales

representatives. “It is here that we familiarize

our partners with current and emerging trends

– trends that Sirona has identified, or even set

itself.” For example: as dental offices increasing-

ly ‘go digital’ and enable integrated communi-

cations between X-ray machines, billing systems

and additional modules, Sirona is offering spe-

cial IT network trainings for service technicians.

A theme introduced at this year’s IDS booth

in April – a “Passion for Dentistry” – can be

used to describe the focus of the Dental

Academy, which is designed to help our

employees better convey our passion to our

customers and partners. The Dental Academy

offers a range of internal training courses to

continuously expand the professional know-

how of Sirona’s employees, as well as their

social and intercultural skills. The latter is a

core element of our international growth; 

with special trainings in intercultural commu-

nications, our team is well-prepared to under-

stand different work methods and communi-

cation styles in different parts of the world,

Similar showrooms to those in Bensheim (shown above) are located in the U.S., as well as in Australia, Japan, China, Spain and other Sirona locations.
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reducing any risk of misinterpretations or

misunderstandings. 

In addition to training our own staff and distri-

bution partners, the Dental Academy recently

expanded its offering to include a variety of courses

for employees of dental practices and dental

laboratories, with topics ranging from Quality

Management in Dental Practices to Advising

Patients Who Need Dental Replacements. 

“We receive input for additional training topics

from our distributors, as well as from dentists and

technicians, which we incorporate into our curri-

culum,” explains Patricia Seeliger of the Dental

Academy. “For instance, last fall we were asked to

conduct a special ergonomics training course for

dentists and their assistants. We now offer this

course on a regular basis. These classes are valua-

ble to both the participants and our own employ-

ees, as they offer an opportunity for us to receive

practical input from the users themselves, which

we reference for future product innovation.” 

Partners in CAD/CAM – for
Dental Advancement

All-ceramic tooth restorations, manufactured

with CAD/CAM technology, are an important

element of modern dentistry. Sirona has had a

major impact on this development with its flag-

ship CEREC product. CEREC sets the international

standard for ceramic CAD/CAM restorations.

More than 12 million ceramic restorations have

been installed to date worldwide, using Sirona

technology. This has provided millions of patients

with a long-lasting, aesthetically pleasing tooth

restoration solution – and, even an enhanced

quality of life as a result. 

The popularity of all-ceramic restorations con-

tinues to grow, thanks to improvements in the

quality and durability of the materials used, as

well as the increased availability of advanced

processing technologies. The ability to precise-

ly adjust the material on CEREC (and on inLab,

in dental laboratories) is critical for the quality

of the tooth restoration and the number of

indications. To deliver this capability, Sirona

has been working for many years with two

renowned manufacturers of dental ceramics,

Vita Zahnfabrik and Ivoclar Vivadent. 

”Depending on the specific dental indication,

different ceramic materials with varying

degrees of strength are utilized. Zirconium

oxide, for example, is hardened in a furnace

following the milling process. Fine-structure

ceramic materials, on the other hand, require a

higher degree of hardness since they are not

sintered but rather directly placed in the

patient’s mouth after milling is completed,”

says Peter Fornoff, R&D Hardware Develop-

ment CAD/CAM Systems. “Modern materials

are biocompatible, translucent and have an

excellent consistency,” adds Ulrich Orth, R&D

Software Development CAD/CAM Systems. 

A case in point: Vitablocs TriLuxe, ceramic

blocks featuring three different color intensity

levels to emulate the natural color transitions

found in actual teeth. Manufactured by Vita,

these blocks were developed exclusively for

Sirona. ”Our 3D software can match these

ceramics to the individual gradient of the

tooth. Using this technology, even the most

seasoned professionals can barely distinguish

tooth replacements from natural teeth in a

patient’s mouth,” says Orth. 

This is just one of the many ways that Sirona is

collaborating with top manufacturers of high-

end dental materials to drive innovation in the

industry, delivering results that are both functional

and aesthetically pleasing. Another example is

our recent partnership with Merz Dental, in

addition to our existing relationship with 3M

Espe, in the area of composites. Sirona recently

collaborated with Merz Dental to make the

artegral® ImCrown dental database available

with inLab’s 3D software. As a result, ready-

made crowns can be quickly and accurately 

fitted onto healthy tooth structures, saving 

time and reducing discomfort for patients. 

Another valuable partnership is Sirona’s cooper-

ation with Straumann, a global leader in

implant dentistry, to address the rapidly grow-

ing implantology market. We have been work-

ing with Straumann since last year to manu-

facture individualized implant prosthodontics. 

»Patients love ceramic tooth replace-

ments. Why? Because they are extremely

durable, biocompatible, and virtually

indistinguishable from real enamel.«

Ulrich Orth, R&D Software CAD/CAM Systems





Talking about competence, marketing strength or innovations: it is results

that matter most. Sirona has experienced significant growth in key markets,

and is poised for continued success worldwide. 

Partnership Means Success.



16 | 17

The Dental Market: Significant
Growth in Key Markets

The demand for dental equipment in many of

Sirona’s key markets has grown faster than the

overall economy. In the U.S., for example, the

dental industry grew by 13 percent from

October 2004 to September 2005, while the

gross domestic product (GDP) grew by just 

3.7 percent over the same period. In Europe, a

similar trend emerged. In the U.K., for example,

sales in the dental industry grew by 8 percent;

in Spain, by 4 percent. One exception to the

rule was the dental marketplace in France,

where political debates about reforms in the

national health care system led to moderation

in spending habits. In Germany and Japan, the

dental industry’s growth rates more or less

matched those of the overall economy. 

Over the last year, dental practices and labo-

ratories in industrialized countries focused on

three key areas: attracting new customers,

enhancing the efficiency and ergonomics of

their practices, and controlling operational

costs. In addition, emerging patient trends 

created new growth opportunities. The desire

to keep natural tooth structure for as long as

possible resulted in increased demand for root

canal treatments (endodontics) and ceramic

tooth restorations. Therapy and preventative

treatment of gingivitis (periodontitis) also 

gained in popularity, especially among 

patients aged 40 and over. 

Aesthetics were another important growth driver

this year, with increasing demand for implants,

enamel-colored fillings and crowns – especially

in countries like Germany, whose health care

systems now offer flexible insurance options to

partially cover these types of services. 

The Year 2004|05

This year saw substantial growth in our sales and operating profits, further

extending our position as one of the world's leading providers of dental equip-

ment. In the coming year, we anticipate profitable growth.
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Company Development

Sirona has further grown in the 2004/05

financial year, and solidified its position as one

of the world’s leading suppliers of dental

equipment. As other Sirona products have

done in the past, many of the innovations that

we introduced this year have had a strong

impact on dentistry worldwide. 

Growing Revenues and Operating Profits

With global sales totaling 365 million euros,

Sirona increased revenues by 14 percent over

the last year. When comparing Sirona’s profit-

ability in this past financial year to previous

years, only operating results should be consid-

ered, as the changes in ownership in

November 2003 and April 2005 has non-

operating effects on the financial results. The

acquisition of Sirona by its management team

and private equity companies Madison

Dearborn Partners (MDP) and Beecken Petty

O’Keefe was funded, as is typical for such a

transaction, by both equity and debt. This re-

sulted in numerous changes to the company’s

financial and legal structure. The new com-

pany was consolidated for the first time as of

June 30, 2005. 

These factors had a significant impact on

Sirona’s balance sheet and its profit-and-loss

statement: The annual result amounts to

minus 28 million euros. However, adjusted

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation,

amortization and extraordinary expenses

(adjusted EBITDA) rose by 17 percent to 84

million euros year over year. Cash flow from

operations, excluding cash-effective interest

and tax expenses, totaled 80 million euros and

increased by 35 percent year over year

(2003/04: 59 million euros).

Partnering for Global Leadership and 
Presence

Sirona’s products are sold in over 100 coun-

tries through our worldwide network of

distributors. In the past few years, we have

also added dedicated subsidiaries in selected

markets to complement and extend the work

of our local partners. This year, we further

increased our worldwide presence by opening

additional subsidiaries. 

In October 2004, for example, Sirona Dental

Systems K.K. in Tokyo, Japan started opera-

tions. The company has 39 employees, and

works closely with our existing partner in the

region, Tokyo Dental Systems Co., to market

and service our products in Japan. 

In November 2004, Sirona purchased one of

China’s three largest manufacturers of dental

treatment centers, and incorporated the com-

pany into a new Chinese subsidiary. Sirona

Dental Systems (Foshan) Co. Ltd. is located in

Foshan, some 40 miles north of Hong Kong.

Finally, to further expand our presence in the 

Asia-Pacific market, we launched a new Sirona

subsidiary in Australia in May 2005.

Driving Innovation in the Dental Industry 

Sirona continued to turn out new, leading-edge

products this year, demonstrating its reputation

as the innovation leader for the dental industry.

Some of our most exciting solutions were intro-

duced at the world-renowned International

Dental Show (IDS) in Cologne, Germany, in April

2005. Examples include: CEREC Chairline, which

integrates our leading-edge dental CAD/CAM

systems directly into the dental treatment cen-

ter; SIDEXIS XG with ImplantPlus, an enhanced

version of our software featuring a new plug-in 

for the graphical visualization of implants using

digital X-ray images; PerioScan, the first-ever

ultrasonic unit that can detect and scale calcu-

lus and SIROLaser, a diode laser so compact

that it fits in the user’s palm. 

Many of our latest products were also recog-

nized as setting new standards for quality and

innovation: ORTHOPHOS XGPlus, our panoramic

X-ray solution, was selected as a finalist in
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Germany’s national contest for innovation in

industry and commerce, and our inEos solution

for dental laboratories, an extraoral scanner

that was launched at the beginning of 2005,

received the internationally acclaimed Red Dot

Design Award for Excellence in Product Design. 

Effecting New Majority Ownership and
Agreeing to Acquire Schick

Other milestones of the past financial year

included the purchase of Sirona from EQT by

the Sirona management team, Madison

Dearborn Partners (MDP) and Beecken Petty

O’Keefe as well as a definitive agreement for

the merger with U.S. imaging specialist Schick

Technologies. 

At a company party in July 2005, EQT bid our

staff farewell, while MDP was introduced to

the team as the company’s new financial

sponsor. MDP is one of the largest private

equity investors in the U.S., with a specialized

focus on healthcare and other key industries.

Sirona was MDP’s first German healthcare

investment. MDP based its investment in the

company on our strong global presence, our

leading product innovation, our experienced

management team and our world-class staff

of dental equipment experts. 

With the new ownership in place, an agreement

to merge with Schick Technologies was signed in

late September 2005, in a strategic move to

increase our presence in the U.S. Together, Sirona

and Schick will create a powerful union to

address the needs of the U.S. dental market. Our

R&D platforms for imaging systems are a perfect

fit, and the merger provides us with even better

access to our most important market worldwide.

The company is listed on the NASDAQ stock

exchange. The future Sirona Dental Systems, Inc.

will therefore be listed on the U.S. technology

stock exchange – giving us access to additional

capital, and enabling us to use the equity for

future acquisitions.

Sirona’s Chief Executive Officer, Jost Fischer,

will become Chairman, President and Chief

Executive Officer of Sirona Dental Systems, Inc.

Jeffrey T. Slovin, Schick’s President and Chief

Executive Officer, will become Executive Vice

President of the combined company, and Chief

Operating Officer of its U.S. operations.

Sirona’s Chief Financial Officer, Simone Blank,

will become Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer. Theo Haar, Sirona’s Executive

Vice President of Human Resources & Services,

will continue in his position. Sirona will hold

seven seats on the combined company’s 

Board of Directors; Schick will hold three. 

The transaction, which is structured as a

“Reverse Merger”, is expected to close in the

first quarter of 2006. It is subject to approval

by Schick shareholders, preparation of Sirona’s

financial statements in accordance with the

United States GAAP and other customary clos-

ing conditions. 

In a stock-for-stock exchange, Schick will issue

Sirona's parent company 36.97 million new

Schick shares in exchange for 100 percent of

its economic interest in Sirona. Sirona’s owners

will maintain 67 percent interest in the com-

bined company, while current Schick share-

holders will hold the remaining 33 percent.

»Together, Sirona and Schick will 

create a company with a strong global

presence, an unrivaled breadth of 

products and excellence in R&D.«
Jeffrey T. Slovin, President and Chief Executive Officer, Schick Technologies, Inc.

Schick Technologies, Inc.  

• Company: A leading supplier of digital intra-

oral imaging systems in North America 

• Founded: 1992

• Headquarters: Long Island City, 

New York, U.S.A. 

• Employees: 145 

• Sales: 60 million U.S. dollars 

(October 2004 to September 2005) 

• EBITDA: 21 million U.S. dollars  

(October 2004 to September 2005) 

• www.schicktech.com

The Combined Company 

Name: Sirona Dental Systems, Inc.

Headquarters: Bensheim, Germany 

U.S. Offices: Long Island City, New York;

Charlotte, North Carolina 

Employees: 1,850 
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Strong Appearance in Japan 

Solidifying Our Global Market

Sirona products are sold by over 500 profes-

sional dealers worldwide. We work closely

with our dealers to ensure seamless support 

at all times. In key markets, we maintain dedi-

cated subsidiaries to work with Sirona dealers

in their respective locations. 

In 2004/05, we further strengthened our sales,

operations, which are essential to our ongoing

growth strategy. For example, we recently

expanded our partnership with Henry Schein,

an authorized dealer of Sirona treatment cen-

ters, imaging systems and handpieces, beyond

the European market. In 2005, the company

began to support sales in the U.S. and Canada

as well. We also extended our agreement with

Patterson, our exclusive dealer for the CEREC

line in North America, for another 10 years. 

In addition to maintaining these important

partner relationships, Sirona added a number

of new subsidiaries worldwide. In October

2004 and May 2005 respectively, we launched

Sirona Dental Systems K.K. in Tokyo, Japan, and

Sirona Dental Systems Pty., Ltd. in Sydney,

Australia. Today, we maintain subsidiaries in

nine countries around the globe to support

our local dealers – spanning the U.S.,

Australia, China, Japan, the U.K., France, Spain,

Italy, and Denmark. 

The biggest sales highlight of the year for

Sirona took place at IDS in April 2005. At 

our 2,200 square foot booth, we presented

numerous new developments in all product

categories. The audience’s interest and strong

sales demand exceeded even our most am-

bitious expectations, making this year’s IDS

event our most successful ever.

When visiting the dentist in Japan, patients take off

their shoes in the waiting room and slip on a pair 

of comfortable slippers. This is just one of the many

customs that is unique to the world’s second largest

dental market, which is primarily dominated by local

manufacturers. Imports account for only about one

sixth of the Japanese dental market. Additionally, this

market is serviced by a highly fragmented, multi-level

distribution network with some 1,000 dealers cater-

ing to dentists virtually around the clock. As a rule,

Japanese customers expect nothing less than per-

fection when it comes to products, equipment and

customer service. 

Sirona has flexibly adapted to the Japanese market-

place and its special requirements. In October 2004,

Sirona Dental Systems K.K. started operations in

Japan, with a staff of 39 employees dedicated to

marketing the entire Sirona product line to customers

in the Tokyo region, and CEREC nationwide. Sirona’s

long time local partner, Tokyo Dental Industrial Co.,

Ltd., continues to serve the other Japanese regions. 

“In Japan, a company can only be successful if its

products are perfectly adapted to local market

needs,” explains Yuji Kuriki, General Manager of

Sirona Dental Systems K.K. “For example, many build-

ings in Japan are made of wood, which means that

heavy devices, such as X-ray units and treatment

centers, require a stable basis. Another local nuance:

smaller mouths. Our Japanese customers have spe-

cifically requested that we develop a new range of

handpieces with very small sized heads, so they 

can better treat cavities in their patients. Naturally,

we complied.” 

It’s that kind of customization and attention to detail,

along with the hardworking dedication of Sirona

Dental Systems K.K.’s team, that continues to make

Sirona a success in Japan – and worldwide. In Tokyo

and its surrounding areas, Sirona’s revenues have

already grown by 45 percent over the previous year. 

Yuji Kuriki
General Manager 
Sirona Japan

»For the sales team, IDS was the high-

light of the year. The response we received,

and subsequent demand for our products,

exceeded even our greatest expectations.«

Regina Kuhnert, Vice President Sales Germany, Benelux and Austria
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The primary growth driver has been business

in the U.S., where sales climbed by 37 percent

to 99 million euros in spite of the weak U.S.

dollar. For the first time, Sirona's sales in the

U.S. matched those in Germany, where we

recorded a rise of nine percent. In the other

European countries, Sirona increased its sales

by six percent to 89 million euros. Sales out-

side the U.S. and Europe totaled 78 million

euros.

Trendsetter U.S.A.

The U.S. has become the world’s largest den-

tal marketplace. It has also taken center stage

for Sirona. Over the last three years, our com-

pany has seen strong growth in the U.S. mar-

ket. In 2004/05, our dollar-based sales increased

by 43 percent to 125 million U.S. dollars. In

the two previous years, it increased by 25 and

70 percent respectively. This development is

due partly to high demand for our CAD/CAM

systems, CEREC and inLab. Sales with these

systems increased by 37 percent in the U.S.

year on year. CEREC and inLab effectively

address patient demand for a long-lasting,

perfect smile, while at the same time in-

creasing efficiency and hence profitability for

dental practices and labs.

Sales of the ORTHOPHOS XG panoramic X-ray

solutions with their superior image quality

have developed extremely well. Easy operation

and the immediate availability of the images

on the PC allow users to switch effortlessly

from film-based solutions to digital panoramic

X-rays. In the U.S., Sirona has also benefited

from the increasing use of electrically-driven

handpieces, which can be handled with more

precision than their air-operated counterparts.

Currently, only around 15 percent of U.S. den-

tists use electric handpieces in their practices,

compared with over 95 percent in Europe. This

market is expected to grow by 15 to 20 per-

cent in the near future. 

»The ORTHOPHOS XG product line

has been a huge success in the U.S. 

dental market. Dentists love the brilliant

quality of the images and the simplicity

of operation.«

Michael Williamson, Vice President Sales & Marketing Sirona U.S.A.
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Germany: Above-average Growth

Business in the German market has developed

positively despite a cautious investment climate

due to the overall economic situation. Sales

increased by 9 percent to 99 million euros.

Business with digital X-ray systems grew by 

21 percent, and sales of CAD/CAM systems

for ceramic tooth restoration rose by 28 per-

cent. Sirona profited from industry trends such

as increasing digitization in dental practices

or the growing emphasis on aesthetics by

patients. The development in demand for the

M1+ treatment center was positive. The inno-

vations presented at the International Dental

Show (IDS) were very well received in the 

market.

Europe: Strong Presence 
Secures Growth

In Europe, Sirona increased its sales by 6 per-

cent to 89 million euros. In individual markets

such as Switzerland and Italy, sales rose by 23

and 15 percent respectively, which is signifi-

cantly more than the market as a whole. With

additional employees and new trading part-

ners in the United Kingdom, Sirona improved

its market penetration, achieving sales growth

of 18 percent. 

Sirona is gaining access to new markets in Asia and Africa with a line of treatment centers manufactured in Foshan, China under the brand name Fona. 

For most people in China, pain is often the only

reason to visit a dentist. Preventive treatment is

rare, a fact that seems to be related to the out-

dated equipment found in many Chinese dental

practices, and the relatively high costs of dentistry.

With this in mind, Sirona founded a presence in

Beijing in 1998 to import advanced dental tech-

nology to the Chinese market. 

But technology was not the only impetus. Over

60 percent of the Chinese population has no

medical insurance whatsoever, making it difficult

for them to afford proper dental care. In addi-

tion, in large parts of the country, dentistry is

being practiced by individuals who have no 

formal training. It is only in major areas, such as

Beijing, Shanghai and the Pearl River Delta, that

patients can find adequate dental services, both

on a medical and on a technical level. 

To better address this variety of issues within

the Chinese market, Sirona further expanded its

presence in the region in October 2004, with

the acquisition of one of China’s three largest

manufacturers of dental treatment centers. With

its 170 employees, our new subsidiary, Sirona

Foshan, is located just outside of Hong Kong.

Currently, six different treatment centers, carrying

the brand name Fona, are being manufactured by

Sirona Foshan, catering specifically to the Asian

as well as to the African markets. 

“Today, Sirona is no longer an importer in China.

We are now a local manufacturer, which enables

us better to serve the market in all its com-

plexity,” says Stevan Petrovic, General Manager

of Sirona Foshan. “In modern, vibrant societies, 

dental care is a top priority. As countries such 

as China, Thailand and Vietnam become more

prosperous, we anticipate increasing demand 

for professional dental products and services,

while the number of practitioners in this part 

of the world will continue to grow.” 

Stevan Petrovic
General Manager
Sirona Foshan
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Sales of dental CAD/CAM systems, imaging

systems and treatment center developed parti-

cularly well in Europe. Intensified customer

relations and partner support provided by our

own local subsidiaries, e.g. in France, Spain

and U.K., had a favorable effect on sales in the

countries concerned.

Other Markets: Heterogeneous 
Development

Sirona recorded heterogeneous development

in the markets outside of Europe and the U.S.A.,

with sales rising by 8 percent to 78 million

euros. In Japan, Korea, and Canada we achieved

double-digit growth rates. Delays in project

business, for example in setting up large 

dental centers, prevented stronger growth in

other countries. Sirona Japan and Sirona

Australia started operations in October 2004

and May 2005 respectively. Following the

establishment of Sirona Foshan in China, the

treatment centers produced there for the basic

price segment were presented under the brand

name Fona. These are also intended for export

to Africa and Asia. The initial market response

to the new Fona products has been excellent. 

Products

Sirona’s portfolio includes four product groups:

dental CAD/CAM systems, Imaging Systems,

Treatment Centers and Handpieces, including

hygiene systems for dental practices. 

Dental CAD/CAM Systems: Continued
Strong Growth

The past year saw tremendous growth in de-

mand for systems for computer-aided tooth

restorations in dental practices and laborato-

ries around the world. Sirona’s sales of dental

CAD/CAM systems accounted for 133 million

euros, a 34 percent increase over the previous

year – making this product group the largest

contributor to Sirona’s overall revenues in

2004/05. All of Sirona’s sales regions regis-

tered a double digit increase in this area, 

The inLab system for dental laboratories has been extended to include inEos, a digital scanner that streamlines the process of developing ceramic bridges. 
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with the largest upsurge occurring in the 

U.S., reaching 37 percent.

As CAD/CAM-based tooth restorations in-

creasingly become the standard procedure in

dental practices, Sirona has seen a steady rise

in sales of CEREC systems over the last few

years; and the market still holds significant

potential. Switzerland, for example, has the

highest CEREC market penetration worldwide

– yet only 10 percent of dental practices in the

country currently use the technology. In Ger-

many, penetration is only 9 percent, and in the

U.S., the largest target market for CEREC, less

than 6 percent of offices are currently utilizing

the system. Clearly, CEREC still has substantial

growth potential around the world.

Sirona also saw dynamic growth this year for

inEos, an extraoral scanner launched in 2005

to complement our inLab system, which was

developed specifically for dental laboratories.

inEos generated huge demand right out of the

gate, and over 500 units were sold in the nine

months since its market introduction. 

Several studies demonstrate the durability of the

CEREC solution. A case in point: the U.S. Air 

Force’s Dental Evaluation & Consultation Service

(DECS), which tests treatment methods, materials

and medical equipment for the Air Force, rated

our inLab systems “Excellent” in June 2005. 

»To ensure the best possible tooth 

replacements, it is critical to carefully

adjust the materials for processing 

with CEREC and inLab.«

Peter Fornoff, R&D Hardware CAD/CAM Systems

ORTHOPHOS XGPlus, our leading digital X-ray system, delivers total user comfort along with enhanced diagnostic options for dentists. 

Dental CAD/CAM Systems sales
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Imaging Systems:
ORTHOPHOS XG Family Successful 

In the 2004/05 financial year, Sirona sold 79 mil-

lion euros worth of imaging systems – an increase

of 20 percent over last year. Sales increased in

all markets, with an especially strong performance

in North America, France, Italy and Germany.

The main reason for this increase in revenues is

the recent introduction of Sirona’s next genera-

tion of digital panoramic and cephalometric 

X-ray systems. Our flagship product in this cate-

gory, ORTHOPHOS XGPlus, was launched in July

2004, and provides specialists, orthodontists,

oral surgeons and implantologists with over 

30 different programs and a wide variety of

diagnostic possibilities. In the fall of 2004, the

ORTHOPHOS family was expanded with the

release of the ORTHOPHOS XG 5, which was

designed for general dental practitioners. And

since April 2005, our ORTHOPHOS XGPlus can

be purchased with a Transversal Slice Acquisi-

tion (TSA) option, providing dentists with a

view into a third dimension, and implant 

specialists with enhanced diagnostic options.

In addition, Sirona recently launched the basic

model ORTHOPHOS XG 3. 

This past year, we sold over 1,400 units of our

ORTHOPHOS XG product line. We also experi-

enced substantial growth in the digital intra-

oral sensor business. With the acquisition of

Schick Technologies, we will continue to

expand our line of intraoral imaging systems

and extend our position in the U.S. 

Treatment Centers: Seeing Continued
Growth for the M1+ Model

Treatment center sales totaled 102 million euros

this year, matching last year’s levels. Sirona’s

development in this area is due in part to

increasing sales of our leading M1+ treatment

center, which was first launched in 2003/04, as

well as growing demand for our preventive care

unit, ProFeel+. ProFeel+ is optimized for dental

prophylaxis, such as professional dental clean-

ings, and integrates all necessary handpieces as

well as numerous service elements. 

With the recent launch of our new line of treat-

ment centers, produced by our Chinese subsidiary,

Sirona will reach new audiences. As one of the

three largest providers of treatment centers in

China, Sirona Foshan markets six treatment units

under the brand name Fona, which are designed

for a lower price segment – a new target market

for Sirona. These products are designated for sales

in China and other Asian countries, as well as

Africa. 

The M1+ treatment center and ProFeel+, a hygiene center for preventative treatment, are quickly becoming market favorites. 
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Handpieces: Launching Multiple Product
Innovations

Overall, in 2004/05, global sales of handpieces

and hygiene systems equaled last year’s levels,

totaling 50 million euros. While sales in

Germany increased slightly, they decreased in

the rest of Europe due to lower market prices

for standard handpieces. This development

was partly balanced, however, by our growth

in the U.S. market, which experienced a 

19 percent increase in revenues over last year.

This marks the second year of sales growth in

the U.S., due in part to the increasing trend

among American dentists to switch from air-

operated turbines to the more powerful elec-

tric handpieces. 

Our dental hygiene and sterilization equipment

business is prospering. Development and mar-

keting activities for these products take place

at Sirona’s Denmark subsidiary, Nitram Dental

a/s. Nitram manufactures the DAC Universal, a

unique device that cleans, lubricates and ster-

ilizes handpieces in a single procedure. 

Research and Development:
Maintaining Industry Leadership 

To ensure our continued leadership in innova-

tion for the global dental equipment industry,

research and development (R&D) is among

Sirona’s top priorities. Accordingly, we increased

our investment in R&D, one of Sirona’s core

competencies, in the past financial year by more

than 8 percent to 26 million euros. With R&D

spending totaling 7.2 percent of annual sales,

and a team of 120 dedicated R&D employees,

Sirona is poised to maintain its role as the 

leading innovator for dental equipment 

worldwide. 

When it comes to R&D, Sirona’s approach is

simple: develop products that offer new diag-

nostic and treatment options, while increasing

user comfort and streamlining process effi-

ciency. To this end, we work with a range of

strategic partners in research facilities and

dental practices around the world. For instance,

PerioScan, the all-in-one unit for diagnosing

and treating subgingival calculus, was devel-

oped in close cooperation with specialists at

the Universities of Clausthal and Greifswald in

Germany. Another example of collaboration

with strategic partners is the SIROLaser diode

laser (see page 10). With these two new prod-

uct developments, as well as the release of

SIROEndo, an innovative root-canal system,

Sirona strengthened its position in the growth

markets of endodontics and periodontology.

We also expanded our offering in the rapidly

growing implantology sector, bringing to mar-

ket a series of special contra-angle handpie-

ces, and the practical tabletop ImplantSystem

unit. 

In treatment centers, our R&D efforts primarily

focused on the CEREC Chairline, which integrates

CEREC into our M1+ and C2+ treatment centers.

For dentists, who spend most of their day at the

Products like SIROEndo, DAC Universal and ImplantSystem enhance treatment options and streamline work processes in dental practices around the world. 
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treatment center, the tight integration of various

treatment elements is imperative. The CEREC

Chairline addresses this issue, successfully com-

bining the user comfort and ergonomic quality

of our Sirona treatment centers with the eco-

nomic and clinical benefits of CEREC. 

We enhanced the functionality and ergono-

mics of our popular M1+ and C2+ treatment

centers. Both now include a new support arm

system, which serves as the basis for our

enhanced communications system, SIVISION 3.

SIVISION 3 provides dentists with direct

access to imaging systems, digital X-ray 

archives and critical patient data with a touch

of a button on the treatment center. In addi-

tion, a new traveling track for the assistant

element in both the M1+ and C2+ centers,

along with a motorized dentist element, are

designed to ensure the safety, comfort and

convenience of the dental work environment.

A prime example of our dedication to R&D

this year includes improvements to inLab, the

CAD/CAM system for dental lab technicians,

which has become even more versatile with

the availability of new materials and the addi-

tion of the inEos Scanner. With the combina-

tion of inLab, inEos and our central production

center, infiniDent, dental technicians can now

choose between eight different ceramics and

two dental alloys for any indication. 

Another major R&D development for Sirona in

2004/05 was the introduction of enhanced

software for CEREC, the chairside CAD/CAM

system for dentists. With CEREC Crown, den-

tists can now build crowns as easily and safely

as inlays, onlays and veneers. Once the design

is optically captured, the crown can be gene-

rated almost automatically. In addition, the

duration of the milling process has been cut by

an impressive 40 percent.

In the area of imaging systems, our R&D 

efforts focused on the enhancement of our

ORTHOPHOS XG product family, as well as

future-oriented technologies such as 3D X-ray

systems. This past year, we expanded the

image processing software of ORTHOPHOS XG,

SIDEXIS XG, with a plug-in for implant visuali-

zation. Furthermore, we extended the capabili-

ties of ORTHOPHOS XGPlus to support Trans-

versal Slice Acquisition (TSA), featuring pre-

programmed orbital curves which expose any

region in a right angle to the jaw arch. This

offers a view into a third dimension of the

tooth, and in combination with standard

panoramic X-rays, provides an efficient alter-

native to computer tomography (CT) and digi-

tal volume tomography (DVT). 

In 3D X-ray technology, the jaw and the cra-

nium are represented in three dimensions. By

providing dentists with the ability to visualize

With the CEREC Chairline, building and placing crowns, onlays, veneers and inlays directly at the chairside has become easier than ever.  

»It is our goal to develop products that

are efficient and easy-to-use, offering

our customers added-value that delivers

tangible results.«

Harald Hamann, R&D Treatment Centers
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the jaws and the cranium in three dimensions,

Sirona’s X-ray technology transforms a simple

diagnostic procedure into a computer-aided

therapy planning tool. With this technology,

dentist will, for example, be able to more

accurately position implants, significantly reduc-

ing the risk of damaging the nerve. To further

reinforce our developments in the area of 

imaging systems, we founded SiCAT GmbH &

Co. KG, in November 2004. The caesar research

center in Bonn, Germany, is a shareholder in

this company.

Procurement: Using Different
Processes to Control Costs

At Sirona, we use our worldwide presence to

further improve the procurement of goods and

services, and take advantage of global sourc-

ing opportunities. Despite the hike in prices for

raw materials, this approach has enabled us to

achieve savings. To continually enhance our

procurement procedures, Sirona’s Strategic

Procurement Department keeps an eye out for

capable suppliers all over the world. In China,

for example, our Sourcing Scouts are tracking

preproducts to supply the production teams in

Bensheim in a cost-effective way. 

Together with OCÉ Germany we developed a

Print-on-Demand process to produce technical

documentation only after incoming orders are

received. This allows us to produce the exact

amount of documentation needed, offering

just-in-time production to reduce storing costs

and ensure that customers always get the

latest version, in the language of their choice. 

Sirona staff members apply a cost-conscious

approach to everything they do, down to

working with a special travel management

solution to optimize itineraries and save

money on business trips.

Dental Academy: 
Expanding the Curriculum

Sirona’s Dental Academy is at the center of

our ongoing education and training efforts. 

In 2004/05, we conducted 400 seminars for

3,600 participants from over 40 different

countries at the Dental Academy. Our new

training programs for dental practice and labo-

ratory employees were particularly successful,

addressing a range of important topics, such

as ergonomic work procedures and efficient

use of CEREC CAD/CAM and the inLab sys-

tems.

Sirona features dedicated training centers in

several key locations, at our headquarters in

Bensheim, Germany, as well as at our subsidiaries

in Spain, Australia, Japan and the U.S. Last year,

the training activities in the U.S. kicked into full

gear. Recently, for example, we familiarized 700

Sullivan Schein technicians and sales represen-

tatives from across the U.S. with our Sirona

products. 

The Dental Academy is a communication platform used intensively by distribution partners and customers.
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Customer Service: 
Webshop has been Started

In December 2004 we launched our Webshop,

providing our partners with an online resource

to order spare parts online. In September

2005, the Webshop was expanded to include

many Sirona products, including handpieces.

This year, we will continue to make more prod-

ucts available via the Webshop, ensuring total

convenience for our partners around the

world. 

In addition to offering 24x7 ordering options,

the Sirona Webshop features a number of

benefits for our partners, including online avail-

ability checks, instant information about delivery

dates, suggestions for alternative materials, 

special sales and more. And the Webshop is

always open, so partners can place orders and

check the status of their orders at any time. 

In addition to the Webshop, Sirona recently

began providing partners with a B-to-B solution

designed to make their business processes more

efficient and transparent. The solution is based

on the SAP-XI (Exchange Infrastructure) technol-

ogy, and supports the linking-up of materials

management systems, making order processing

easier and more efficient for our distributor

partners, and for us. 

Employees: Evolving into 
a Global Team

As Sirona continues to solidify its position as a

global player, its workforce has evolved into a

global team. From October 2004 to September

2005, the number of employees outside of

Germany grew from 181 to 396. In the mean-

time, our staff continued to grow overall. At

the end of the financial year, the Sirona Group

had a total of 1,699 employees, a 17 percent

increase over last year. This growth is attributed

to a variety of factors, including: the launch of

new offices in China, Australia and Japan; and

the addition of new personnel in the U.S. in

response to Sirona’s rapid growth in that

market. 

To cater to the needs of our increasingly multi-

national team, we have implemented a series

of new cross-cultural trainings, and expanded

the dialogue among members of the Sirona

Group to ensure that all needs are being

addressed. Among our new methods of com-

munications is an English version of our com-

pany newsletter “insight”, which was launched

in 2004. 

Employee Participation: Taking Part in
Corporate Development 

Involving employees in the development and

growth of Sirona is an important success fac-

tor. Over 98 percent of our employees partici-

pate in a bonus-structure remuneration pro-

gram, which is based on performance accord-

ing to the EVA (Economic Value Added) con-

cept. When the Sirona management team,

Madison Dearborn Partners (MDP) and

Beecken Petty O’Keefe purchased Sirona,

employees were also offered a chance to par-

ticipate in the Sirona equity. Over 500 employ-

ees took advantage of this opportunity world-

wide. 

But at Sirona, employee participation is not

limited to financial involvement alone. It also

includes providing the staff with opportunities

to be involved in our strategic development.

Sirona’s award-winning Success Management

program uses input from employee assess-

ments and reviews to guide our ongoing strat-

egy development. For instance, more than 

The team at Sirona’s affiliate, Nitram a/s, produces the DAC Universal hygiene system at the Risskov facility in Denmark.

Number of employees

2002|03 2003|04 2004|05

1,250
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1,699



| Introduction | Partnership | The Year 2004/05 | Management Report | Consolidated Financial Statements | Notes |

200 employees were recently invited to make

suggestions for potential improvements in the

company as part of their regular assessments.

In addition, more than 800 employees volun-

tarily participated in an anonymous survey

about their jobs at Sirona, and the company

as a whole. 

Sirona also offers a comprehensive Idea

Management System (SIM) to further encour-

age staff involvement, inviting employees 

to submit suggestions for the continuous

improvement of corporate processes and prod-

ucts. Last year, for example, we implemented

an idea for new device packaging, based on

the input of our employees – saving us more

than 40,000 euros. Altogether, in 2004/05,

our employees submitted over 1,000 sugges-

tions, with a savings potential of 750,000

euros.

Employee Education: Grooming Process-
Oriented Professionals 

At the end of this financial year, Sirona over-

saw 107 trainees, educating them in five differ-

ent professions. More than half of the trainees

focused on the field of mechatronic engineering.

Sirona also opens its training programs to

other companies, including Henry Schein and

Nordwest Dental. Last year, 31 prospective

mechatronic engineers from these companies

completed part of their training period at

Sirona. 

In addition to its core curriculum, Sirona imple-

mented a number of special training projects

this year, including “Junior Company” and

“Learning Island.” Junior Company offered a

company within a company, enabling trainees

to assist in different Sirona departments. Last

year, trainees developed a checkbox system to

test all single components of the C2+ treat-

ment unit. In the meantime, Learning Island

provided an opportunity for trainees to become

skilled at working autonomously and in a 

process-oriented way while assisting with

Sirona’s equipment production team. 

Together with the Mannheim Business School,

Sirona offers students the opportunity to com-

bine their academic studies with practical

experience at the Sirona offices. 

Continuing Education: Developing
Professional and General Skills 

In addition to providing training courses in

various subjects and supporting the ongoing

professional education of all of our employees,

Sirona’s program of continuing education

befits that of a global player, offering courses

in foreign languages and intercultural commu-

nications. Before our employees are sent to

Sirona Foshan, for example, they take part in 

a language and culture course, so they can

arrive in China adequately prepared for their

new environment. 

Sirona trainees take on important company tasks; Junior company trainees developed a checkbox system to test all single components of our C2+ treatment center. 
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Environment: Focusing on
Energy Conservation 

Sirona is proud to practice true environmental

stewardship, making sure to treat the environ-

ment and natural resources with the utmost of

care in everything we do. We have implement-

ed a comprehensive environmental manage-

ment system to ensure environmental protec-

tion, quality assurance and occupational safety

for all of our business and product development

operations. This system is in compliance with

the DIN EN 14001 Standards and the EMAS II

Environmental Directive, the joint system of the

European Union for environmental and occupa-

tional safety management. 

Our commitment to protecting the environ-

ment also extends to our products, devices

and systems, all of which leverage recyclable

materials whenever possible to conserve ener-

gy and minimize pollution. A case in point: the

ORTHOPHOS XG family, our new line of digital

cephalometric and panoramic X-ray systems,

requires a much lower dose of radiation than

previous products. 

Sirona is also careful to comply with the envi-

ronmental regulations put forth in every coun-

try in which we operate. In March 2005, for

instance, Germany signed the Electrical and

Electronic Equipment Act into law, requiring

manufacturers of electronic equipment to take

back their old products at no cost to the

buyer, beginning in March 2006. Sirona has

already prepared for this task. 

As for corporate environmental protection,

Sirona has significantly reduced energy con-

sumption in equipment production. In 2004,

for example, at our corporate headquarters 

in Bensheim, electric power consumption per

million Euro sales decreased by a third as

compared to the year 2000. During the same

time, water consumption per employee de-

creased from 20m3 to less than 15m3. In the

new building, which is optimized for environ-

mental sensitivity, Sirona’s energy consumption

is likely to decrease even further. 

Community: Giving Something
Back to Society

As a socially responsible company, Sirona is

committed not only to environmental protec-

tion but to communal and social outreach as

well. For the past several years, for instance,

we have worked with local schools in Ger-

many to help youngsters choose a profession.

In the past year specifically, we invited stu-

dents to tour our production plant, and also

participated in the regional ”Girls’ Day”, which

encourages girls to take an interest in techni-

cal professions. We also regularly contribute to

local institutions, charities and sports teams

such as the local handball team near our

headquarters in Bensheim, Germany.

With the well-being of our global community 

a foremost priority, Sirona also plays an active

role in international organizations benefiting

those in need. In the last year especially, we

donated considerable time, money and pro-

ducts to support the victims of recent natural

disasters, including the tsunami in Southeast

Asia and Hurricane Katrina in the Southeast

United States. 

Construction recently began on the new office building in Bensheim, Germany. Construction is scheduled to be completed by early 2007.
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Outlook: Further extending
our Market Position

In the current financial year, we expect to see

growth for Sirona in both sales revenues and

operating profits. Our highest growth market

for 2005/06 is expected to be the United

States. The transaction with Schick and the

resulting listing of Sirona on the NASDAQ is an

important milestone in the current financial

year. The merger with Schick is to strengthen

our position in the U.S. and in the area of imag-

ing systems. At the same time, the NASDAQ

listing will drive additional public exposure and

awareness to our brand, while providing us

with access to the world’s most dynamic capi-

tal market, fueling our continued corporate

expansion. 

Scheduled for the first quarter of 2006, the

closing is subject to a conversion of Sirona’s

financial statements to United States GAAP

accounting practices and Schick shareholder

approval. As a company listed on NASDAQ,

Sirona will be subject to the stringent publicity

requirements of the United States Securities

and Exchange Commission, the SEC, including

a different annual report (10-K) and quarterly

reports (10-Q).

In the U.S. we expect to create new opportu-

nities for customer acquisition with market-

specific products, such as the new, high-end

dental furniture offering that was recently cre-

ated in cooperation with global furniture

maker Kappler.

We anticipate our new subsidiaries in Asia to

deliver the largest percentage increase in sales.

Sirona Foshan will export the Fona treatment

center to Asia and Africa, allowing our compa-

ny to deliver affordable options to these

lower-priced market segments. 

Finally, in Europe, where we have had an

established presence for many years, we

expect continued sales growth.

In terms of product growth in 2005/06, our

plan is to convert the strong market response

we received to the many new products we

launched in the past year into tangible sales

figures. 

A major growth driver for us in 2005/06 will

continue to be the Sirona line of CAD/CAM

systems. In March 2006 in Berlin, Sirona will

host a major conference with 1,500 invited

guests to celebrate 20 years of our CEREC

CAD/CAM product. The event will showcase

the fact that CEREC has become the interna-

tional standard for ceramic dental restorations.

This event will be followed by a similar event

in Las Vegas in October 2006. We also antici-

pate increased growth for inLab following the

launch of the infiniDent production center

planned for 2006 at our Charlotte, NC office

in the U.S.

User comfort and benefits are a top priority for all of Sirona’s developments – from the Kappler cabinetry program, to SIRONiTi, to the ORTHOPHOS XGPlus.
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for the financial year from 
October 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005

During the financial year ended September 30, 2005, the Sirona Group increased its sales by 14%

and raised its earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and extraordinary,

non-operating expenses (EBITDA) by 17% year on year. 

The financial data for the 2004/05 financial year was materially affected by the changes in

Sirona's balance sheet and financial structure that resulted from the change in equity ownership

and capitalization structure during the reporting year. For this reason, various items in the balance

sheet and income statement are only comparable to a limited degree with those from the pre-

vious year. For further details, please refer to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The comments in this management report therefore primarily relate to the financial presentation of

the Group's results as set out in section V. of the notes. 

Development of business and situation of the Company

In 2004/05, the Sirona Group generated sales of € 364.8 million, a year-on-year increase of 

€ 45 million or 14%. All sales regions contributed to this result. In addition, the Dental CAD/CAM

Systems and Imaging Systems product groups turned in particularly strong performances. 

The dental industry was characterized by the following developments in 2004/05:

■ Strong growth in the U.S. dental market, especially for products with the potential to improve

the efficiency of dental practices, such as digital imaging and CAD/CAM systems

■ Caution on the part of practitioners in Germany to invest in dental equipment in view of the

general economic climate 

■ Continuation of global mega-trends: Increasing digitization in dental practices, growing demand

for aesthetically indicated dental medicine, willingness of dental consumers to spend more on

top of the benefits provided by the public healthcare funds, and stronger demand for biocompa-

tibility and minimally invasive procedures

■ Mergers and acquisitions involving distributors and manufacturers of dental equipment.

The global competitive situation continues to be dominated by a large number of small and

medium-sized suppliers that specialize in particular product groups.

Pro Forma Group Management Report 



Net assets and financial position

The structure of the Sirona Group's balance sheet is significantly influenced by its financing struc-

ture and the impact of consolidation under the revaluation method, which resulted in a high pro-

portion of fixed assets and a low equity ratio. The ratio of current assets to short-term accruals

and liabilities equates to less than one month's sales. 

The net cash provided by the Group's operating activities - excluding the payment of € 82 million

for an exclusivity agreement and before taxes and interest - amounted to € 80 million in the

reporting period. Some of the proceeds were used to pay down bank loans. 

Results of operations

Sales

U.S.A. - SUSTAINED GROWTH 

Despite the weak dollar, the Sirona Group once again achieved double-digit sales growth in the

U.S. last year, with increases of 43% on a dollar basis and 37% in euro terms. Sales in the U.S. 

equaled sales in Germany for the first time. Sales were increased in all product groups. The Dental

CAD/CAM Systems and Imaging Systems product groups generated sales growth of 45% and

50% respectively in dollar terms. There is still strong demand for CEREC - the CAD/CAM system

for dentists - as well as inlab and inEos, which are designed for dental laboratories. The new

generation of panoramic x-ray systems, including ORTHOPHOS XGPlus, the flagship of the line, has

met with an excellent response in the U.S. market. The trend toward replacing air-driven turbines

with more powerful electric motors continues. 

In January 2005, Sirona also started to work together with Henry Schein Group as a business

partner for treatment centers, imaging systems and handpieces in North America.

In July 2005, Sirona extended by ten years Patterson Dental Inc.'s exclusive rights to sell CEREC in

the U.S. and Canada in exchange for a one-time payment of US$ 100 million. 

The United States is expected to remain a strong growth market for the Sirona Group in the cur-

rent financial year, not only because of the products it has already successfully established in the

marketplace but also due to its strong business partners and new products. 

| Interview | Growth | The year 2003/2004 | Management report | Consolidated financial statements | Notes |
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EUROPE - ABOVE-MARKET GROWTH  

Sales in Europe performed well. In markets such as Germany, Italy and Switzerland - where sales

were increased by 9%, 15% and 23% respectively - sales growth was well above the market 

average. Key drivers here were dental CAD/CAM systems, imaging systems and treatment centers.

The increased support we have provided to our customers and partners through our own local

subsidiaries have added to this development. 2004/05 was also impacted by the International

Dental Show (IDS), which is held every two years in April in Cologne. Sirona presented a total of

12 new products coming from all product groups. Demand for them exceeded our expectation. 

The performance of these markets during the current financial year will depend on whether the

economic environment and, in some regions, consistent healthcare policies can sustain a favorable

climate for investment by dental practitioners. The Sirona Group is well-positioned with its prod-

ucts and expects to see growth stimulus from the increasing trend toward digitalization and net-

working of dental practices. Our continued expansion of local presence will be the basis for fur-

ther growth. 

PERFORMANCE OF OTHER REGIONS VARIES

Outside the U.S. and Europe, sales stagnated overall. While Japan, Korea and Canada each report-

ed double-digit growth rates, stronger growth in many other countries was hampered by delayed

projects. We continued to expand and strengthen our representative offices locally so that we can

derive significant benefit from the growth of these markets. Sirona Japan and Sirona Australia

opened for business in October 2004 and May 2005 respectively.

Sales in the product groups

TREATMENT CENTERS AND HANDPIECES – SALES IN LINE WITH LAST YEAR  

Sales of treatment centers and handpieces matched last year's level. Both product groups were

affected by delays in project business. Whereas sales of treatment centers in Europe rose, sales of

handpieces in this region fell due to price competition in conventional equipment. This decline was

offset by continued double-digit growth in sales of handpieces in the U.S.

The large number of newly developed products launched in 2004/05 provides a sound basis for

growth.

IMAGING SYSTEMS - ORTHOPHOS XG FAMILY SUCCESSFUL  

The launch of the ORTHOPHOS XG family - the new generation of panoramic and cephalometric 

X-ray systems - produced year-on-year sales growth of 20% in 2004/05. 

The introduction of further models from this family - the ORTHOPHOS XG 5 and the TSA module

(transverse tomography) - and the growing trend toward digital imaging will enable this product

group to sustain its strong performance. 



DENTAL CAD/CAM SYSTEMS – SHARP RISE IN SALES OF CEREC AND INLAB

Sales of dental CAD/CAM systems showed a strong performance, growing by 34% year-on-year

and by as much as 39% on a currency-adjusted basis. CEREC, the system designed for dental

practices, is well on the way to becoming a standard procedure in dentistry. The inLab system for

dental laboratories was supplemented by the inEos extra-oral scanner at the beginning of 2005,

generating lively demand right from the outset. 

Dental CAD/CAM systems have considerable growth potential as their level of market penetration

is still very low. We expect demand for dental CAD/CAM products to continue to increase in the

current financial year. 

IMPACT OF THE WEAKER DOLLAR

The Sirona Group bills about 30% of its sales in U.S. dollars. Various materials and services are

also purchased in dollars. If the average euro/dollar exchange rate for the 2003/04 financial year

had been applied, Sirona's sales and its loss from ordinary activities would have improved by 

€ 5 million and € 4 million respectively.

CHANGE IN SALES MARGINS

The gross profit rose year-on-year in 2004/05 due to the regional and product mix.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Spending on research and development in 2004/05 amounted to € 26 million or 7.1% of sales.

Research capacities were expanded, especially in the field of software and through cooperation

agreements with external partners. Sirona employs over 120 people in these functions and works

with external project partners.

FURTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

■ In October 2004, the Sirona Group established a wholly-owned Chinese subsidiary - Sirona

Dental Systems (Foshan) Co. Ltd. - so that it could acquire a Chinese manufacturer of treat-

ment centers. We completed the acquisition of China's HTC Group in the same month.

■ On November 10, 2004 Sirona founded SiCAT GmbH & Co. KG in Bonn together with the

research institute caesar. The company is active in the development of imaging systems. 

■ Sirona Dental Systems Pty., Ltd. opened for business as an Australian service and sales com-

pany in December 2004.

■ Sirona's management and Madison Dearborn Partners acquired the Sirona Group. The acquisi-

tion became legally effective on June 30, 2005. A new Group legal and tax structure was

then implemented.

| Interview | Growth | The year 2003/2004 | Management report | Consolidated financial statements | Notes |



36 | 37

■ Schick transaction

On September 25, 2005, the Sirona Group's parent company agreed with Schick Technologies

Inc. (OTC BB: SCHK), a publicly traded company, that it would acquire Schick through a reverse

merger. As part of a stock exchange, Schick will issue 36.97 million new shares to Sirona's

parent and, in return, receive 100% of the shares in Sirona Holding GmbH. Sirona's stock-

holders will then receive 67% of the shares and Schick's stockholders will be given the remaining

shares. In addition, Schick's stockholders will be paid a dividend of US$ 2.50 per share. The

merged entity will be called Sirona Dental Systems, Inc. and will be based at Sirona's head

office in Bensheim. The company's U.S. headquarters will be Schick's head office in New York.

The company boards of Sirona and Schick voted unanimously in favor of the merger. The deal

is due to be closed in the first quarter of 2006. This will require the consent of Schick's stock-

holders, approval by the antitrust authorities, the adoption of American accounting standards

(U.S. GAAP) for Sirona's financial reports, and compliance with other customary closing condi-

tions. Schick stockholders who own roughly 37% of Schick's issued and outstanding common

stock have already said they will approve the deal. Schick has applied to be listed on the

NASDAQ, the U.S. technology exchange.

Between October 2004 and the end of September 2005, Schick's 145 employees generated

sales of US$ 60 million and EBIT of US$ 21 million.

SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES OF FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The principal risks to the future development of the Sirona Group are

■ an economic downturn and a commensurate reduction in households' disposable incomes

available for high-quality dental care

■ the outcome of the debate on structural healthcare reforms and the resultant uncertainty for

dentists, dental technicians and patients

■ the process of consolidation and concentration among distributors and the intensified pressure

on prices and margins

■ the process of consolidation and concentration among manufacturers of dental equipment

and the intensified pressure on prices and margins

■ the weakening of the U.S. dollar against the euro.

We have defined early-warning indicators to identify potential risks to our business; these indica-

tors are monitored on an ongoing basis and, if necessary, will give rise to the implementation of

countermeasures. There are no indications of any risks constituting a threat to the continued exis-

tence of the Company.



Should they not occur, all the risks listed above also present an opportunity for the Sirona Group

to intensify the growth of its business. With its innovative products, Sirona is well-placed to reap

significant benefits from the growing trend toward digitalization and networking of dental prac-

tices. From a regional perspective, emerging markets such as China offer further opportunities over

the medium to long term. Sirona set up its own Chinese subsidiary in the 2004/05 financial year

and will play a key role in the development of China's dental equipment market.

SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK

Sirona continued to grow its business in the 2004/05 financial year, strengthening its market posi-

tion as one of the world's leading suppliers of dental equipment. 

We expect the Company to continue its positive development in the current financial year, al-

though this might be impaired if the U.S. dollar were to weaken further against the euro. The

Sirona Group will continue along the strategic path it has embarked upon, investing further in

research and development and improving its existing cost structures in order to create the condi-

tions to win market share and increase its profitability.

Schick complements Sirona ideally in the fast-growing U.S. market. The development platform will

benefit our customers, business partners and patients. Sirona and Schick are two of the most

innovative players in the dental sector and will continue to make their mark on this industry.

We would like to thank our employees for their dedication and the contribution they have made

to the Company. We also wish to thank the members of the works council for the trust they have

placed in us and for their constructive support.

Bensheim, December 15, 2005

Sirona Holding GmbH

Jost Fischer Simone Blank Theo Haar

| Interview | Growth | The year 2003/2004 | Management report | Consolidated financial statements | Notes |



38 | 39

Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements 

Pro forma consolidated balance sheet Assets

€
Note 9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Fixed Assets IV.1
Intangible assets

Patents and licenses 
amortized previous carrying amount 6,812,370 9,926,538
from purchase price allocation 399,680,000 349,923,889

406,492,370 359,850,427
Goodwill 

amortized previous carrying amount 0 4,594,071
from purchase price allocation 474,280,898 83,150,398

474,280,898 87,744,469
Payments on account 3,663 111,232

880,776,931 447,706,128
Property, plant and equipment

Land, land rights and buildings 
amortized previous carrying amount 16,236,803 16,789,706
from purchase price allocation 4,570,000 4,999,792

20,806,803 21,789,498
Technical equipment and machinery 

amortized previous carrying amount 4,513,969 3,887,790
from purchase price allocation 3,760,000 4,990,000

8,273,969 8,877,790
Other plant, factory and office equipment 8,102,251 8,609,694
Payments on account and assets under construction 303,873 512,376

37,486,896 39,789,358
Financial assets

Participations 279,642 0
Cash surrender value of employer`s pension liability 1,000,869 708,801

1,280,511 708,801
919,544,338 488,204,287

Current assets
Inventories IV.2.1

Raw materials and supplies 13,674,771 11,654,646
Work in process 8,740,747 7,727,762
Finished goods 11,643,030 10,965,355
Payments on account to suppliers 17 591,617
Payments on account from customers -337,662 -706,993

33,720,903 30,232,387
Receivables and other assets

Trade receivables and other assets IV.2.2 39,459,743 47,936,576
Other assets IV.2.3 21,205,424 4,651,983

60,665,167 52,588,559
Cash on hand, bank and checks 55,887,413 32,299,135

150,273,483 115,120,081
Prepaid assets 1,515,840 1,126,205
Deferred tax assets 1,749,011 558,288

1,073,082,672 605,008,861
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Pro forma consolidated balance sheet Equity and liabilities

€
Note 9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Equity IV.3
Subscribed capital 25,000 508,000
Capital reserve 103,542,536 44,959,000
Revenue reserve -2,977,548 -1,297,477
Exchange rate differences 477,024 -192,231
Consolidated net loss for the year -12,102,778 -28,362,426
Minority interests -41,581 0

88,922,653 15,614,866
Accruals

Accruals for pensions and similar 
obligations                                                            IV.4.1 26,515,779 25,307,251
Tax accruals IV.4.2 1,271,609 2,388,914
Deferred taxes on purchase price allocation           IV.4.2 150,718,894 132,952,114
Other accruals IV.4.3 45,983,535 36,620,793

224,489,817 197,269,072
Liabilities

Bank loans and overdrafts IV.5.2 487,390,698 303,385,243
Trade payables 18,464,342 20,204,970
Shareholder loan IV.5.1 153,414,635 40,680,367
Other liabilities IV.5.3 17,672,675 27,771,746

of which residual purchase price payment 
€ 0 (previous year: € 20,000,000)
of which taxes
€ 13,165,786 (previous year: € 1,368,569)
of which social security  
€ 1,943,950 (previous year: € 1,846,768)

676,942,350 392,042,326
Deferred income IV.5.4 82,727,852 82,597

1,073,082,672 605,008,861
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Pro forma consolidated income statement 

Pro forma Pro forma

€
Note 10/1/2004 – 10/1/2003 –

9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Sales V.1 364,821,756 319,878,391
Cost of sales   -205,512,443 -179,898,464

of which depreciation and 
amortization on purchase price allocation -35,179,974 -20,709,951

Gross profit 159,309,313 139,979,927

Research and development expenses -25,949,984 -23,769,327
of which depreciation and   
amortization on purchase price allocation -620 -1,230

Selling expenses -87,224,214 -67,016,752
of which depreciation and  
amortization on purchase price allocation -5,300,694 -3.115.927

General administrative expenses -16,948,422 -14,400,380
of which depreciation and 
amortization on purchase price allocation -95,260 -95,260

Other operating income V.5 4,490,728 2,727,742
Other operating expenses V.4 -19,109,680 -14,458,628

of which depreciation and 
amortization on purchase price allocation and goodwill -12,364,453 -7,425,374

-52,941,000 -31,347,742
-144,741,572 -116,917,345

Operating profit 14,567,741 23,062,582
Other interest and similar income 910,634 749,215
Interest and similar expenses                                  V.6 -48,906,072 -27,015,829
Net financial expenses -47,995,438 -26,266,614
Loss from ordinary operations -33,427,697 -3,204,032
Extraordinary expenses V.7 -11,518,824 -9,362,854
Income taxes V.8 2,949,589 -7,847,923
Release on deferred taxes on purchase price
allocation V.8 14,143,633 14,143,633 7,914,882 7,914,882

-38,797,367 -23,432,860
Other taxes -791,727 -1,000,000
Pro forma consolidated net loss for the year -28,645,025 -13,499,927
Minority interests -401,268 0
Pro forma consolidated net loss for the year -28,243,758 -13,499,927
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Reconciliation to consolidated net loss for the year

Pro forma Pro forma

€
10/1/2004 – 10/1/2003 –

9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Pro forma consolidated net loss for the year -28,243,758 -13,499,927 
Elimination of surplus from economic acquisition date 
to date of initial consolidation 16,468,896 -14,862,499
Minority interests 
(period up to 6/30/2005) -327,916 0
Consolidated net loss for the year per pro forma
consolidated balance sheet -12,102,778 -28,362,426 
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for the financial year from 
October 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005

Basis of presentation

The pro forma consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions

of the German Commercial Code (HGB). The consolidated income statement follows the cost-of-

sales format. 

Explanatory comments - which can be included either in the balance sheet, the income statement

or the notes - are generally presented in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Nature of operations  

I. General information

Sirona is one of the world's leading manufacturers of dental equipment. The company develops

and produces treatment centers, imaging systems, handpieces and hygiene equipment as well as

systems for computer-aided ceramic restorations (dental CAD/CAM systems). Sirona Group in

addition to its parent comprises 16 subsidiaries and representative offices around the world, and

its head office is in Bensheim, Germany.

1. Creation of the Group

Sirona Holding GmbH, Bensheim (“SHG” - formerly Blitz 05-118 GmbH) was established by articles

of incorporation dated June 14, 2005. The majority of the interests in SHG are held by Sirona

Holdings Luxco S.C.A., Luxembourg, which in turn is majority-owned by funds managed by

Madison Dearborn Partners, and by Beecken Petty O’Keefe and management and employees.

On June 30, 2005, SHG acquired indirectly through its subsidiary Sirona Dental Services GmbH (for-

merly Blitz F04-506 GmbH) all of the shares in Sirona Dental Systems Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungs

GmbH, Bensheim (SDSBV; which on August 16, 2005 was merged with Sirona Dental Services

GmbH), the former holding company of the Sirona Group, with effect from October 1, 2004. 

The debt-free/cash-free purchase price for the shares in the Sirona Group amounted to € 756 mil-

lion. The purchase price and other acquisition-related costs were financed by equity, a shareholder

loan, a mezzanine loan and senior-ranking bank loans. The borrowers are Sirona Dental Services

GmbH and Sirona Dental Systems GmbH.  Details of financial liabilities are provided in Note IV.5.

Notes to the Pro Forma Consolidated

Financial Statements 



Prior year figures relate to the pro forma consolidated financial statements as of September 30,

2004, which had been prepared by Sirona Dental Systems Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungs GmbH,

Bensheim. As a result of the acquisition and the associated restructuring of financing and the impact

of the recognition of the difference on consolidation, the consolidated balance sheet and income

statement are only comparable with the Sirona Group's key data prior to the acquisition - i.e. the

prior-year figures - in its operating businesses. For this reason, the notes include a comparison with

the prior year for the main operating data shown in the balance sheet and the income statement.

2. Date of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The financial year for SHG and all consolidated companies ends on September 30, 2005. The 

initial consolidation of the Group was carried out with effect from June 30, 2005, the day on

which the interests in the Sirona Group were transferred to the buyer. The consolidated income

statement has been prepared pro forma from the economic date of acquisition, i.e. for the period

from October 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005. 

3. Group companies

Sirona Holding GmbH, Bensheim, has prepared pro forma consolidated financial statements for the

Sirona Group as of September 30, 2005, which include the following subsidiaries:
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An overview of the Group's structure as of September 30, 2005 can be found in the annex to the notes. 

Subsidiary Abbreviation Shareholding %

Sirona Dental Services GmbH, Bensheim SDG 100%

Sirona Dental Systems GmbH, Bensheim SDS 100%

Sirona International Holding GmbH, Bensheim SIH 100%

Sirona Immobilien GmbH, Bensheim Immo 100%

Sirona Equipos Dentales Ibérica S.A., Barcelona/Spain Sedi 100%

Sirona Holding, Inc., Wilmington, Delaware/U.S.A. SHUS 100%

Sirona Dental Systems LLC, Charlotte/U.S.A. SDS US 100%

Advanced Technology Research s.r.l., Pistoia/Italy ATR 100%

Sirona Dental Systems K.K., Tokyo/Japan SDS KK 100%

Nitram Dental a/s, Risskov/Denmark Nitram 100%

Sirona Dental Systems S.A.S., Paris/France SDS FR 100%

Sirona Dental Systems Ltd., London/U.K. SDS UK 100%

Sirona Dental Systems (Foshan) Co. Ltd., Foshan/China SDS China 100%

Sirona Dental Systems Pty., Ltd., Sydney/Australia SDS Australien 75.2%

SiCAT GmbH & Co. KG, Bonn/Germany SiCAT 51%

SiCAT Verwaltungs GmbH, Bonn/Germany SiCAT Verwaltung 51%
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Furthermore the following changes and additions to the Group's structure took

place during the period from October 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005:

In October 2004, Sirona Dental Systems (Foshan) Co. Ltd., China was established  as a wholly-

owned subsidiary in order to acquire a Chinese manufacturer of treatment centers. This company's

subsequent acquisition of the Chinese HTC Group in form of an asset deal was also completed in

October 2004.

In November 2004 Sirona Group established  SiCAT GmbH & Co. KG and its general partner SiCAT

Verwaltungs GmbH as a single limited partnership together with the research institute caesar in

Bonn. SiCAT is a development company which focuses on the development of  3D X-ray technolo-

gy. Sirona holds a majority interest of 51% in this company.

In December 2004, the service and sales company Sirona Dental Systems Pty., Ltd. was founded

in Australia as a 75.2% subsidiary. The remaining 24.8% is held by the company's directors.

The legal structure in place prior to the acquisition of the Sirona Group was subject to the follow-

ing changes:

■ Sirona Dental Services Verwaltungs GmbH was merged onto Sirona Dental Systems

Beteiligungs- und Verwaltungs GmbH (SDSBV) on July 26, 2005. As a result, Sirona Dental

Verwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG and Sirona Dental Services GmbH & Co. KG were merged onto

SDSBV on July 26, 2005. 

■ On July 12, 2005, Sirona International Holding GmbH sold its shares in Sirona Dental Systems

Ltd. (U.K.) to Sirona Holding GmbH.  

■ SDSBV was merged onto Sirona Dental Services GmbH on August 16, 2005. 

II. Summary of significant accounting policies

1. Principles of consolidation

Consolidation was carried out under the revaluation method by offsetting the purchase costs

against the subsidiaries' equity as of the acquisition date.

The difference on capital consolidation of T€ 746,387 as of June 30, 2005 was allocated on the

basis of an expert opinion issued by PricewaterhouseCoopers GmbH, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesell-

schaft, Frankfurt am Main, December 5, 2005 as follows:



Market-oriented, capital-oriented or cost-oriented methods have been applied as follows to

determine the fair values of the assets recognized by the acquired enterprises and of those assets

that had not previously been recognized but were identified in connection with the allocation of

the purchase price.

The multi-period excess earnings method, a residual profit method, was used to determine the fair

values of the technologies existing in the Group.  This method is based on a forecast of the future

revenues and expenses that can be attributed to the asset being valued.  The pre-tax earnings

attributable to the asset were reduced - after adjustment for taxes - by the imputed cost of sup-

porting assets (contributory assets charges, or CACs) and corporate taxes, and were discounted

to the valuation date applying a  capitalization rate of 8.7%.  Patents and trademarks were

valued under the license price analogy method.  Licenses were recognized at the present value of

future income streams. Buildings have been valued using the discounted cash flows of fair market

rents over the residual useful economic lives of the individual buildings. Technical equipment were

recognized under the replacement cost method.

Under all valuation methods, the tax amortization benefits were added back based on a tax rate

of 36.94% and reported as deferred tax liabilities totaling T€ 154,686. Of this amount, T€ 3,967,

i.e. 36.94% of depreciation and amortization on property, technical equipment and intangible

assets, had already been released by September 30, 2005.
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Difference on capital consolidation

T € Balance as at
6/30/2005

Intangible assets

Technologies 231,500

Patents and licenses 100,030

Trademarks 78,330

409,860

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 4,630

Technical equipment 4,260

8,890

Remaining goodwill (asset)  482,323

Deferred taxes -154,686

746,387



46 | 47

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION OF DIFFERENCES

Depreciation and amortization of T€ 18,779 on differences calculated as of June 30, 2005 for the

period from July 1 to September 30, 2005 are reported separately under functional costs in the con-

solidated income statement in order to make the Group's operating performance transparent.

The pro forma income statement also includes depreciation and amortization of T€ 34,162 on

differences recognized as of February 29, 2004 (old structure) for the period from October 1, 2004

to June 29, 2005. These are also shown separately under functional costs.  

The release of deferred taxes is reported separately under taxes.

Amortization on differences

T € Total

Amorti- Amorti- Amorti-

Balance zation zation zation Balance

as at 10/1/04 – 7/1/05 – 10/1/04 – as at

6/30/2005 6/30/05 9/30/05 9/30/05 9/30/2005

Differences on first-time consolidation of the Group:

Intangible assets

Technologies 231,500 0 6,990 6,990 224,510

Patents and licenses 100,030 0 1,880 1,880 98,150

Trademarks 78,330 0 1,310 1,310 77,020

409,860 0 10,180 10,180 399,680

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings 4,630 0 60 60 4,570

Technical equipment 4,260 0 500 500 3,760

8,890 0 560 560 8,330

Remaining goodwill (asset) 482,323 0 8,039 8,039 474,284

901,073 0 18,779 18,779 882,294

Pro forma depreciation and amortization of "old"  

goodwill and assets 33,597 565 34,162

901,073 33,597 19,144 52,941



All material intercompany accounts and transactions were eliminated on consolidation. 

Intercompany profits on inventories were eliminated in accordance with Section 304 HGB. The

amount of intercompany profits eliminated on the Group's inventories as of June 30, 2005 (T€

4,719) and the deferred taxes of T€ 1,741 incurred thereon are netted and reported as a revenue

reserve. 

Deferred taxes are calculated using the deferral method, under which the current tax rate for sig-

nificant Group companies is applied.  Deferred taxes calculated in connection with the revaluation

amounted to T€ 150,719 as of September 30, 2005 and are reported as deferred tax liabilities

under accruals. 

The annual financial statements of SHG and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries have generally

been prepared applying uniform accounting policies in accordance with HGB. Valuation principles

for foreign subsidiaries, which are applied in accordance with local statutory regulations, have

been maintained to the extent that any potential impact on the consolidated financial statements

was deemed immaterial.

2. Conversion of foreign currencies 

The balance sheets of foreign entities are translated into euros at the exchange rates prevailing on

the balance sheet date, and their income statements are translated at the average exchange rates

for the period; the exception is equity items, which are translated at the exchange rates prevailing

on the date of initial consolidation. Differences arising on translation are shown as a separate

item within equity. 

Exchange rate differences arising from the consolidation of medium- and long-term debt are

shown as a separate item within equity.

Foreign-currency receivables and payables are converted at the exchange rates prevailing as of the

transaction date or at the rates prevailing as of the balance sheet date (September 30, 2005). Real-

ized gains and losses and unrealized losses are recognized in profit and loss for the current period.

Foreign-currency assets hedged using currency forwards are translated at the exchange rate

agreed in the hedge.  Accruals are established to cover unrealized losses on currency forwards.

Unrealized gains are not recognized. 

As of September 30, 2005, U.S. dollar currency forwards amounting to US$ 53.9 million had been

concluded at an average exchange rate of 1.2545 dollars to the euro, whose positive fair values

totaled T€ 9. They have not been recognized in income. The sum of their negative fair values

amounted to T€ 1,171, for which an accrual for impending losses was established.
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III. Accounting and valuation methods 

The principal accounting and valuation methods are summarized below:

1. Sales

Sales are recognized on shipment of products. They represent amounts realized, excluding value

added tax (VAT), and are shown net of returns, trade discounts and allowances.

2. Research and development expenses

All research and development costs are expensed as incurred. 

3. Extraordinary items

In accordance with German GAAP, all material income and expense items that do not relate to

the normal course of business are classified as extraordinary items. 

4. Fixed assets

Purchased intangible assets are recognized at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis over

a maximum of five years or, if longer, over the economic useful lives of the underlying assets.

Patents are amortized over their term on a straight-line basis. 

Goodwill arising on capital consolidation is amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated

useful life of 15 years. Impairment losses are recognized on goodwill whenever recovery of the

recorded costs is permanently impaired due to product innovations or changes in market condi-

tions. 

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at acquisitions or production cost less depreciation.

Impairment losses are recognized whenever impairment in value is permanent. Recurring mainte-

nance and repair costs, as well as interest costs, are not capitalized but are expensed as incurred.

The German Group companies generally use the declining-balance method of depreciation,

switching to the straight-line method as soon as the latter results in higher depreciation. 

Depreciation of the property, plant and equipment of foreign Group companies is calculated pri-

marily using the straight-line method.

Low-value items with acquisition costs of up to € 410 are written off in the year of acquisition. 

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:



5. Current assets

Inventories are recognized at acquisition or production cost, or at their lower current value. In

addition to direct material and labor costs, production costs include an appropriate proportion of

overhead material and production expenses as well as production-related depreciation. Interest on

borrowings is not included in production costs. Inventories include allowances for risks relating to

slow-moving items and technical obsolescence.

Receivables and other assets are stated at their nominal amounts or at their fair values, if lower.

Valuation allowances for receivables are recognized for specific collection risks, discernible country

risks and general collection risks. 

6. Pension accruals and other accruals

The pension scheme taken over from Siemens AG on October 1, 1997 (legacy scheme) was restruc-

tured with effect from January 1, 2001 by a single plant bargaining agreement dated August 23,

2001.

■ The previous pension scheme remains effective for employees falling under the legacy scheme

who were at least 55 years old as of the changeover date and for retired employees. The

obligations are accounted for at going concern value in accordance with Section 6a of the

German Income Tax Act (EStG).

■ The contractual obligations toward employees falling under the legacy scheme who had not

yet reached the age of 55 years at the changeover date were frozen, and future payments

will be made to a pension fund. Pension accruals (legacy scheme) are recognized at the 

present value of the future obligation.

■ Payments are made to a pension fund for all employees, as defined by Section 5 (1) of the

Labor-Management Relations Act (BetrVG), who joined the scheme on or after October 1, 1997.

■ Since November 2002, all employees of Sirona have been able to convert a portion of their

wages or salaries (in the form of one-time payments from gross earnings) into employer’s

pension commitment.  These contributions are used as insurance premiums that are paid into

the employer's pension liability insurance scheme. This entitlement under the pension liability

insurance scheme is shown as a separate item under financial assets, and an accrual is estab-

lished in the same amount under pension accruals. 
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Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Factory and office buildings 20 to 50 years

Other buildings 5 to 10 years

Technical equipment and machinery 5 to 10 years

Office and other equipment 3 to 5 years
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Other accruals cover all identifiable risks arising from contingent liabilities and anticipated losses

on uncompleted transactions and are recognized in the amount deemed necessary by reasonable

commercial assessment.

The method used to calculate accruals for vacation and credit balances on flextime accounts is

based on a ruling by the German Federal Fiscal Court dated June 26, 1980.

7. Use of estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has made certain estimates and

assumptions in order to determine the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and contingent

assets and liabilities as well as the amounts reported in the income statement. The actual

amounts may differ from these estimates.

IV. Notes to the balance sheet

As already explained in Note I.1, only the operating financial data of the newly created Group

under the management of Sirona Holding GmbH can be compared with the Sirona Group under

its "old" structure, i.e. prior to the acquisition. Current assets, short-term liabilities and the perti-

nent accruals are compared below:

Comparison of selected balance sheet items

T € 9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Inventories 33,721 30,232

Trade receivables 

(incl. trade receivables from former affiliated companies) 39,460 47,937

Other assets 21,205 4,652

Prepaid assets 1,516 1,126

Deferred tax assets 1,749 558

97,651 84,505

Pension accruals 26,516 25,307

Tax accruals 1,272 2,389

Other accruals 45,984 36,621

Trade payables 

(incl. trade payables to former affiliated companies) 18,464 20,205

Other liabilities 17,673 7,772

109,909 92,294

-12,258 -7,789



1. Fixed assets

The fixed assets schedule is shown separately in the annex to the notes.  

Financial assets include the capitalized employer's pension liability insurance capital of T€ 1,001

(September 30, 2004: T€ 709) in accordance with an expert opinion issued by Viktoria

Lebensversicherung AG. The employees' entitlement of the same amount is shown separately

under pension accruals.

2. Current assets

2.1 INVENTORIES

As of the balance sheet date, payments on account received from customers were deducted from

inventories in accordance with Section 268 (5) Sentence 2 HGB. 

Valuation allowances of T€ 8,921 (September 30, 2004: T€ 7,994) were made to cover risks

relating to slow-moving items and technical obsolescence.

2.2 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are stated at invoiced amounts less allowances for identified doubtful accounts.

Additionally, a general valuation allowance was established for general collection risks, as is com-

mon practice in Germany. Valuation allowances amount to T€ 2,935 as of September 30, 2005

(September 30, 2004: T€ 5,543).

Trade receivables of T€ 0 have a residual term of more than one year (September 30, 2004: 

T€ 162).

2.3 OTHER ASSETS

Other assets as of September 30, 2005 include a VAT asset of T€ 12,924 resulting from the

invoicing of an exclusivity agreement; a deferred tax liability of the same amount is reported

under other liabilities.
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3. Pro forma equity

Pro forma equity is made up as follows as of September 30, 2005:

4. Accruals for pensions and similar obligations

4.1 PENSION ACCRUALS

Pension accruals relate exclusively to German Group companies. They are based on actuarial

reports and have been developed using the going concern value method in  accordance with

Section 6a of the German Income Tax Act or using the present value. The discount rate used to

calculate German pension benefit obligations is 6% p.a..

Pension accruals are insured with the German pension insurance fund (Pensionssicherungsverein).

4.2 TAX ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED TAXES FROM PURCHASE PRICE ALLOCATION

In addition to the tax accruals, an accrual of T€ 150,719 has been set up for deferred taxes 

arising from the difference on capital consolidation. 

Break down of Pro forma shareholders’ equity

T € 9/30/2005

Subscribed capital 25

Capital reserve 103,543

Revenue reserve (elimination of intercompany profits) -2,978

Exchange rate differences 477

Consolidated net loss for the year

Net loss since acquisition of the Sirona Group  

as of 10/1/04 -28,244

Elimination of surplus from economic acquisition date to 

date of initial consolidation (10/1/04- 06/30/05) 16,141

-12,103

Minority interests -41

Pro forma equity 88,923



4.3 OTHER ACCRUALS

These accruals are stated at the amounts expected to be paid based on the information available

as of the balance sheet date.

5. Liabilities

Liabilities are stated at their repayment amount and fall due as follows: 
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Other accruals

T € 9/30/05 9/30/04

Employee-related accruals 26,896 26,176

Warranties 7,704 5,969

Miscellaneous 11,384 4,476

45,984 36,621

Maturity of liabilities

T € Total Within  Between Over
1 year 1 and 5 year 5 years

Shareholder loan 153,415 0 0 153,415

Bank loans including  
interest payable

Term A 135,000 6,000 75,000 54,000

Interest-rate hedge Term A -228 -228 0 0

Term B 125,000 0 0 125,000

Term C 125,000 0 0 125,000

Mezzanine 101,391 0 0 101,236

Other overdrafts 1,383 1,383 0 0

487,236 7,155 75,000 405,236

Trade payables 18,463 18,429 34 0

Other liabilities 17,673 17,586 87 0

676,942 43,170 75,121 558,651
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In the course of the acquisition of Sirona Group by Sirona Holding GmbH the existing financing

was replaced by a new arrangement, which included bank loans as well as a shareholder loan

granted by the parent company. 

5.1 SHAREHOLDER LOAN

Sirona Holdings Luxco S.C.A., Luxembourg, granted a loan of T€ 150,992. The loan is charged

with Interest of 7.5% p.a. The interest is not paid, but is being  accumulated until the end of the

term on July 15, 2015. Interest of T€ 2,423 had been incurred as of September 30, 2005 and is

reported as a liability.

5.2 BANK LOANS

The bank loans consist of senior-ranking debt totaling T€ 485,000. The loans were divided into

four tranches: Tranche A (TUS$ 162,567), Tranche B (T€ 125,000), Tranche C (T€ 125,000) and

a mezzanine loan (T€ 100,000). An overdraft facility of T€ 40,000 and an acquisition line of 

T€ 50,000 are also available. 

Tranche A (TUS$ 162,567) is repayable by June 30, 2012 in semiannual installments, which are

calculated as a percentage of the loan amount. The first payment falls due in September 2006.

The agreement stipulates the early repayment of capital amounts under certain conditions. In par-

ticular, 50% of an excess cash flow (as defined) falls due one month after issuance of the audited

consolidated financial statements as from the 2006/2007 financial year.

Tranche A incurs interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 1.50% to 2.25% p.a. The margin is calculated

based on the ratio of consolidated total net debt to consolidated EBITDA for the previous repor-

ting period as from the 2006/2007 financial year. Interest is payable on a monthly, quarterly or

semiannual basis. A step-up swap has been concluded for 70% of the interest over the next three

years. 

Tranche B is repayable in a single amount of T€ 125,000 on June 30, 2013. The agreement stipu-

lates the early repayment of capital amounts under certain conditions.  In particular, 50% of any

excess cash flow (as defined) falls due one month after issuance of the parent company's audited

consolidated financial statements as from the 2006/2007 financial year. 

Tranche B incurs interest at EURIBOR plus a margin of 2.25% to 2.75% p.a. The margin is calcula-

ted based on the ratio of consolidated total net debt to consolidated EBITDA for the previous

reporting period.  Interest is payable on a monthly, quarterly or semiannual basis. A cap/floor col-

lar has been concluded for 51% of the interest over the next three years. 

Tranche C is repayable in a single amount of T€ 125,000 on June 30, 2014. The agreement stipu-

lates the early repayment of capital amounts under certain conditions. In particular, 50% of any



excess cash flow (as defined) falls due one month after issuance of the parent company's audited

consolidated financial statements as from the 2006/2007 financial year.

Tranche C incurs interest at EURIBOR plus a margin of 3.25% p.a. Interest is payable on a month-

ly, quarterly or semiannual basis. A cap/floor collar has been concluded for 51% of the interest

over the next three years.

At the time it was issued on June 30, 2005, the mezzanine loan amounted to T€ 165,000. The

proceeds from a one-time payment from a distribution partner for the extension of its exclusivity

agreement for CEREC (see 5.4) were used to repay T€ 65,000 of this loan in July 2005. 

The T€ 100,000 of the mezzanine loan still outstanding on September 30, 2005 is repayable in a

single amount on June 30, 2015. The agreement stipulates the early repayment of capital

amounts under certain conditions. In particular, 50% of any excess cash flow (as defined) falls

due one month after issuance of the parent company's audited consolidated financial statements

as from the 2006/07 financial year.

The mezzanine loan incurs interest at EURIBOR plus a margin of 9.5% p.a., which is split into a

portion of 4.5% that is payable on an ongoing basis and a portion of 5% that is accumulated

until the end of the term. As of September 30, 2005 interest in the amount of  T€ 1,236 have

been capitalized on the loan amount. A cap/floor collar has been concluded for 51% of the inte-

rest over the next three years.

The bank loans are secured by way of a pledge of the shares in Sirona Dental Systems GmbH,

Sirona Dental Services GmbH, Sirona International Holding GmbH and Sirona Immobilien GmbH,

Bensheim. In addition, all receivables, bank accounts, property, plant and equipment, inventories

as well as the patents, trademarks and other property rights of Sirona Dental Systems GmbH and

Sirona Dental Services GmbH have been pledged.

As of September 30, 2005 there were interest-rate hedging agreements covering loans amount-

ing to US$ 124.3 million and € 180.0 million, whose positive fair values came to T€ 1,863 and

T€ 12 respectively. 
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5.3 OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities as of September 30, 2004 included a deferred purchase price liability of 

T€ 20,000 resulting from the acquisition of the operating businesses of the Sirona Group by

EQT Northern Private Equity Funds and management, which was paid to the original seller of 

the Sirona Group on December 15, 2004.

Tax liabilities as of September 30, 2005 include a deferred VAT liability of T€ 12,924 resulting

from the invoicing of the exclusivity agreement; a receivable of the same amount is reported

under other assets.

5.4 DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income essentially comprises a payment of US$ 100 million made by the distribution

partner Patterson Dental Inc., U.S.A., to the Sirona Group in July 2005 for the extension of its

exclusive rights to sell CEREC in the U.S. and Canada. This item will be amortized on a straight-

line basis over 10 years when the extension commences on October 1, 2007. T€ 65,000 of the

proceeds from this payment were used to repay some of the mezzanine loan.

5.5 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities mainly relate to guarantees issued by financial institutions for customer prod-

uct financing agreements signed prior to March 2003. Such product financing agreements are

generally concluded for a period of five years. The contractual arrangements grant a right of

recourse against the distributors. 

As of September 30, 2005, the Group's contingent liabilities amounted to T€ 6,600 (September

30, 2004 pro forma: T€ 5,839). 

Other liabilities

T € 9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Outstanding purchase price payment 0 20,000

Social security 1,944 1,847

Taxes 13,166 1,369

Miscellaneous 2,563 4,556

17,673 27,772



5.6 OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no significant financial commitments relating to

capital expenditure. 

On July 19, 2005, Sirona Dental Systems GmbH, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sirona Holding

GmbH, signed a lease with Hochtief Construction AG for a new head office building in Bensheim.

The lease will run for 18 years from completion of the building, which is scheduled for the end of

2006. The annual rent will amount to € 1,145,400. 

Other future financial commitments - excluding the future rent to be paid to Hochtief - as of

September 30, 2005 were as follows:

V. Notes to the income statement

Pro forma comparison of Group EBIT in internal reporting format (management

accounts):

Since the presentation of Group EBIT and its comparability with previous years is only limited

owing to the acquisitions and the resultant allocations of the differences on initial consolidation,

the income statement is presented below and compared with the previous year pro forma in the

internal reporting format (management accounts). Significant differences in presentation are the

reporting of amortization of differences on consolidation, the presentation of non-operating

expenses and income, and selling and administrative expenses.
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Other financial commitments

T €

2005/06 1,959

2006/07 1,071

2007/08 574

2008/09 29
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The following comments on specific items in the income statement relate to the presentation in

HGB format.

1. Sales

Group sales by geographical region are as follows:

Sales by geographical regions

Other 

T € countries  Other 

Germany in Europe U.S.A. countries Total

2003|04

Pro forma 91,187 83,504 72,936 72,251 319,878

2004|05 
Pro forma 99,326 88,451 99,295 77,749 364,821

Management accounts (unaudited)

T € 2004|05 % of 2003|04 % of
Pro forma sales Pro forma sales

Sales 364,821 319,878

Cost of sales -174,925 -48% -162,990 -51%

Gross profit 189,896 52% 156,888 49%

Research and development expenses -26,470 -7% -24,056 -7%

Selling expenses -83,679 -23% -67,291 -21%

Administrative expenses -14,604 -4% -11,679 -4%

Other operating income / expenses 7,796 2% 7,470 2%

Operating income / EBIT 72,939 20% 61,332 19%

Reconciliation to HGB

Revaluation of US$ loan -2,333 -1% -4,828 -1%

Depreciation and amortization on capitalized 

items owing to purchase price allocation -52,941 -15% -31,348 -10%

Minority interests -401 0% 0 0%

Extraordinary expenses / income -2,696 -1% -2,094 -1%

Operating income / EBIT (HGB) 14,568 4% 23,062 7%

EBITDA 83,728 23% 71,361 22%



Sales by product group in 2004/05 compared with the prior-year pro forma figures were as fol-

lows:

2. Cost of materials

The cost of materials included in the cost of sales in 2004/05 amounted to T€ 184,116 pro forma

(2003/04 pro forma: T€ 155,972).

3. Personnel expenses

Total personnel expenses in 2004/05 amounted to T€ 99,201 pro forma (2003/04 pro forma: 

T€ 88,760) and included pension costs of T€ 2,974 pro forma (2003/04 pro forma T€ 2,862).

4. Other operating expenses

Apart from goodwill amortization of T€ 12,364 (2003/04 pro forma: T€ 7,425), other pro forma

operating expenses essentially comprise foreign exchange losses of T€ 6,062 (2003/04 pro

forma: T€ 6,922). 

5. Other operating income

Other pro forma operating income essentially comprises foreign exchange gains of T€ 3,987

(2003/04 pro forma: T€ 2,680).

6. Interest and similar expenses

This item includes the cost of financing the purchase price in the amount of T€ 21,003 (2003/04

pro forma: T€ 9,349), regular pro forma interest payments to banks to finance the purchase price

in the amount of T€ 24,325 (2003/04 pro forma: T€ 12,492) and interest of T€ 2,422

(2003/04 pro forma: T€ 5,174) charged on the shareholder loans.
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Sales by product groups

T € 2004/05 2003/04

Pro forma Pro forma

Treatment Centers 102,043 101,759

Dental CAD/CAM Systems 132,943 99,191

Imaging Systems 79,219 66,150

Handpieces 49,857 50,805

Electronic Center 759 1,973

364,821 319,878
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7. Extraordinary expenses 

The extraordinary expenses reported mainly comprise acquisition-related costs of T€ 9,313

(2003/04 pro forma: T€ 7,875) and the cost of performing due diligence on acquisition targets.

8. Income taxes

Income taxes mainly comprise German trade tax of T€ 656 and German corporate tax (including

the solidarity surcharge) of T€ 1,092 for the pro forma period from October 1, 2004 to

September 30, 2005 as well as income from reimbursements of corporate tax (including the soli-

darity surcharge) of T€ 1,011 for the 2001/02 financial year, reimbursements of trade tax of 

T€ 1,362 for the 1999/2000 to 2002/03 financial years, income of T€ 1,084 from the release of

an accrual for corporate tax (including the solidarity surcharge) and income of T€ 14,144 from the

release of deferred tax liabilities resulting from initial consolidation.

9. Other information related to the income statement

The functional costs reported include pro forma income of T€ 1,638 (2003/04 pro forma: 

T€ 954) related to prior periods from the release of pension and other accruals.

VI. Other disclosures

1. Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is presented separately in the annex to the notes in order to show the

Group's financial position.

2. Number of employees

The average number of employees during the pro forma financial year on a full-time basis by type

of employment was as follows:

Average number of employees on a full-time basis

2004|05 2003|04

Pro forma Pro forma

Hourly paid employees 623 524

Salaried employees 880 727

Temporary employees 60 31

1,563 1,282



3. Directors and total management remuneration

The directors of Sirona Holding GmbH, Bensheim, are:

■ Jost Fischer, Bensheim, Chairman, President & Chief Executive Officer

■ Simone Blank, Bensheim, Executive Vice President & Chief Financial Officer  

■ Theo Haar, Lautertal, Executive Vice President HR & Services

Management remuneration for the pro forma reporting period (October 1, 2004 to September 30,

2005) totaled T€ 1,660 (2003/04 pro forma: T€ 1,978). 

Bensheim, December 15, 2005

Management

Jost Fischer Simone Blank Theo Haar
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Pro forma consolidated fixed asset movement schedule

Acquisition or production cost

€ 10/1/2004 Additions    Additions    Disposals Disposals Reclassi- Currency 9/30/2005
operating PPA operating PPA fication

Intangible  

assets
Patents and licenses 416,784,771 1,948,888 409,860,000 171,702 369,170,000 123,936 1,632 459,337,525

Goodwill 91,234,106 0 482,322,608 0 91,237,106 0 0 482,319,608

Payments on account 111,232 3,663 0 0 0 -113,900 2,668 3,663

508,130,109 1,952,551 892,182,608 171,702 460,407,106 10,036 4,300 941,700,796

Property, plant and equipment

Land, land rights 

and buildings 55,424,667 165,613 4,630,000 0 5,150,000 0 1,143 55,071,423

Technical equipment and machinery 22,360,272 1,261,165 4,260,000 364,505 7,020,000 485,926 -688 20,982,170

Other plant, factory and
office equipment 41,049,624 6,103,944 0 1,748,796 0 30,819 9,356 45,444,947

Payments on account and 

assets under construction 512,376 317,644 0 0 0 -526,781 634 303,873

119,346,939 7,848,366 8,890,000 2,113,301 12,170,000 -10,036 10,445 121,802,413

Financial assets

Participations 0 279,642 0 0 0 0 0 279,642

Cash surrender value of employer's 

pension liability insurance 708,801 292,068 0 0 0 0 0 1,000,869

708,801 571,710 0 0 0 0 0 1,280,511

628,185,849 10,372,627 901,072,608 2,285,003 472,577,106 0 14,745 1,064,783,720
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Depreciation and amortization Net book value

10/1/2004 Additions    Additions    Disposals Disposals Reclassi- Currency 9/30/2005 9/30/2005 9/30/2004
operating PPA operating PPA fication

56,934,344 2,923,529 37,118,162 101,048 43,991,111 0 1,279 52,885,155 406,492,370 359,850,427

3,489,637 0 12,364,453 0 7,815,380 0 0 8,038,710 474,280,898 87,744,469

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,663 111,232

60,423,981 2,923,529 49,482,615 101,048 51,806,491 0 1,279 60,923,865 880,776,931 447,706,128

33,635,169 621,474 348,386 0 343,333 2,797 127 34,264,620 20,806,803 21,789,498

13,482,482 1,040,204 3,110,000 283,886 4,640,000 0 -599 12,708,201 8,273,969 8,877,790

32,439,930 6,214,249 0 1,312,877 0 -2,797 4,191 37,342,696 8,102,251 8,609,694

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 303,873 512,376

79,557,581 7,875,927 3,458,386 1,596,763 4,983,333 0 3,719 84,315,517 37,486,896 39,789,358

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 279,642 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000,869 708,801

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,280,511 708,801

139,981,562 10,799,456 52,941,001 1,697,811 56,789,824 0 4,998 145,239,382 919,544,338 488,204,287
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Pro forma consolidated cash flow statement

€ 10/1/2004 – 10/1/2003 –
9/30/2005 9/30/2004

Consolidated net loss for the year -28,243,758 -13,499,927
Ancillary acquisition costs 30,293,917 17,223,552
Other extraordinary expenses 2,227,427 1,488,052
Profit from ordinary activities after taxes 4,277,587 5,211,677
Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets 63,740,457 38,053,819
Release of deferred tax liabilities on purchase price allocation -14,143,633 -7,914,882
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 43,617 98,164
Changes in inventories -3,488,516 -5,746,982
Changes in trade receivables 8,476,833 -7,928,628
Changes in receivables from / payables to former affiliated companies 0 1,478,938
Changes in sundry assets -18,133,799 -1,855,051
Changes in accruals 9,453,964 7,816,894
Changes in trade payables -1,740,629 2,579,980
Proceeds from extension of an exclusivity agreement 82,562,748 0
Increase in sundry liabilities 9,983,437 1,953,423
Extraordinary expenses -2,227,427 -1,488,052
Net cash provided by operating activities* 138,804,639 32,259,300
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 543,575 57,435
Withdrawal of previous consolidated goodwill 83,421,726 96,325,179
Purchase price allocation of new goodwill -482,322,608 -86,514,865
Reversal of old purchase price allocation of fixed assets 332,365,556 0
Purchase price allocation of fixed assets -418,750,000 -381,340,000
Increase in deferred taxes on purchase price allocation 31,910,413 140,866,996
Ancillary acquisition costs -30,293,917 -17,223,552
Investment in fixed assets -10,372,627 -14,408,552
Net cash used for investing activities -493,497,881 -262,237,359
Redemption / Repayment of old bank financing -303,385,243 -34,177,285
Proceeds from taking up / change in new bank financing 487,390,698 303,385,243
Redemption / repayment of old shareholder loan -40,680,367 -89,041,966
Proceeds from taking up new shareholder loan 153,414,635 40,680,367
Repayment outstanding purchase price obligation -20,000,000 20,000,000
Changes in equity due to change of group parent company 101,551,545 -24,572,345
Net cash provided by financing activities 378,291,269 216,274,013
Cash flow provided / used during the financial year 23,598,026 -13,704,046
Exchange rate differences -9,748 8,524
Net cash provided / used during the financial year 23,588,278 -13,695,522
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 32,299,135 45,994,657
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 55,887,413 32,299,135

* of which cash-effective
interest expenses 23,562,840 14,906,532
tax expenses 610,032 11,775,476

Net cash provided by operating activities excluding cash-effective interest and tax expenses 162,977,511 58,941,308
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Sirona Dental Systems Ltd.,
United Kingdom

Sirona Dental Services 
GmbH (formerly  

Blitz F04-506 GmbH)*

Sirona Dental 
Systems GmbH

Sirona Immobilien GmbH

SiCAT Verwaltungs GmbH

SiCAT 
GmbH & Co. KG

Sirona International 
Holding GmbH

CYFEX AG,
Switzerland

Sirona Dental Systems 
Pty., Ltd., Australia

Sirona Dental Systems 
S.A.S., France

Sirona Equipos Dentales
Ibérica S.A., Spain

Advanced Technology
Research s.r.l., Italy

Nitram Dental a/s,
Denmark

Sirona Holding, Inc.,
U.S.A.

Sirona Dental Systems
LLC, U.S.A.

Sirona Dental Systems
(Foshan) Co. Ltd., China

Sirona Dental Systems
K.K., Japan

Sirona Holding GmbH
(formerly  

Blitz 05-118 GmbH)*

Group structure as of September 30, 2005

100%

5

5
5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5
5

5

51%

100%

100%
30%

75.2%

*Change of name and relocation of head office to Bensheim were officially entered in the commercial register on November 4 and November 7, 2005 respectively.

5

5
5

5
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To Sirona Holding GmbH

We have audited the pro forma consolidated financial statements and the pro forma group

management report for the business year from October 1, 2004 to September 30, 2005 prepared

by Sirona Holding GmbH, as described below.

The purpose of the pro forma consolidated financial statements and the pro forma group

management report is to present the development of net assets, financial position and results of

operations as if the Group had already existed since October 1, 2004, although the Group only

came into existence legally on June 30, 2005. The pro forma consolidated financial statements

and the pro forma group management report accordingly present a hypothetical situation. The

assumptions made in preparing the pro forma consolidated financial statements are explained in

the notes to the pro forma consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of the pro forma consolidated financial statements and the pro forma group

management report taking into account the assumptions presented in the notes to the pro forma

consolidated financial statements and taking commensurate account of German commercial law

is the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

whether the pro forma consolidated financial statements and the pro forma group management

report have been prepared in accordance with the assumptions presented in the notes to the pro

forma consolidated financial statements and in commensurate observance of German commercial

law, based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the pro forma consolidated financial statements and the pro forma

group management report in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).

It included all auditing procedures that we considered necessary in the circumstances. Knowledge

of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Group and evaluations

of possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit has not led to any

reservations.

Auditors’ Certificate



In our opinion, the pro forma consolidated financial statements were prepared taking into account

the assumptions described in the notes and in commensurate observance of German commercial

law. The pro forma group management report provides inasmuch a suitable understanding of the

Group's position and suitably presents the risks of future development.

Our assignment and professional liability is governed by the General Conditions of Assignment for

Wirtschaftsprüfer and Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaften (Allgemeine Auftragsbedingungen für

Wirtschaftsprüfer und Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaften) in the version dated January 1, 2002. 

By reading and using the information contained in this report, each recipient confirms notice of

provisions of the General Conditions of Assignment (including the limitation of our liability as sti-

pulated in No. 9) and accepts the validity of the attached General Conditions of Assignment with

respect to us.

Frankfurt am Main, December 16, 2005

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft  

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Original German version signed by

Wagenseil Giebermann

Wirtschaftsprüfer Wirtschaftsprüfer
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Technical terms

3D technology

Technology for the three-dimensional visualization of objects on a computer. With the help of

three-dimensional models and dental CAD/CAM technology dentists are able to create precise

and perfectly fitting restorations.

Abutment

Connection between an implant and the superstructure.

Air motor

Power system for dental instruments. Compressed air is used to drive a turbine inside the motor.

Air motors are widely used in the U.S.A. and other countries. 

Amalgam

A metal alloy, produced in various chemical compositions. Silver amalgam (approx. 50 percent

mercury, 35 percent silver, plus smaller quantities of copper and tin) is frequently used for dental

fillings. Due to its proneness to corrosion (the mercury salts dissolve in the patient’s mouth), 

amalgam is the subject of scientific controversy and is suspected of causing allergies. 

Biocompatibility

Biocompatible materials do not have any negative effects on the living organisms in their 

immediate environment. Biocompatibility is an especially important criterion for materials which

are in permanent contact with the human body (e.g. dental implants and restorations).

Bridge

Bridges are firmly attached replacements for lost or non-existent teeth. They are anchored onto

natural teeth (the so-called abutments). A bridge consists of one or more intermediate elements

(“pontics”).

CAD/CAM

CAD = computer-aided design.

CAM = computer-aided manufacturing. 

CAD/CAM systems integrate the design and manufacturing processes. With the help of such a

system the dentist or dental technician can design the complete restoration on a computer. 

The finished product is then milled automatically from a solid block of special ceramic.

Alternatively, CAD/CAM restorations can be created using metal deposition techniques.

Glossary



Calculus

Hard deposits in the gum pockets; a frequent cause of periodontitis.

Cavity preparation

General term for all measures used to prepare a defective tooth prior to filling.

Cephalometric X-ray

X-ray imaging of the patient’s head. Cephalometric X-rays deliver valuable information about the

facial profile, the position of the upper and lower jaws, the direction of growth and the position

of the teeth. Such X-rays are widely used in the field of orthodontics.

Ceramics

Since the 1980s ceramic materials have been increasingly used in dental restorations. These 

materials are strong, durable and highly aesthetic (i.e. they adapt to the color shade of the 

adjacent teeth). In addition, ceramic materials are biocompatible.

Contra-angle handpiece

An angled instrument used for the preparation of teeth. Depending on the type of tooth tissue

involved, the instruments operate at speeds ranging from several hundred to several hundred

thousand revolutions per minute (rpm). The handpieces are color-coded according to their speed

range.

Crown

The encasement of a damaged tooth with a suitable material (e.g. metal alloy, ceramic or compo-

site). The function of a single crown is to restore and conserve the tooth for as long as possible.

Dental equipment

Devices and systems which are used to treat the teeth and to create and place dental restora-

tions. These devices and systems include treatment centers, X-ray systems, instruments, steriliza-

tion and hygiene systems, and dental CAD/CAM restoration systems.

Dentine

The hard tissue which forms the main constituent of the tooth and determines its specific shape.

The visible areas of the dentine are covered by dental enamel. 



70 | 71

DIN EN (ISO) 14001

An environmental management standard published by the International Organization for

Standardization (ISO) in November 2004. 

Diode / diode laser

A laser which uses a semiconductor component (diode) as a light source.

EMAS II

Eco Management and Audit Scheme: An environmental management instrument developed by

the European Union. The goal of EMAS is to bring about the continuous improvement of corporate

environment performance. Participation is voluntary. To qualify for EMAS II certification companies

must have implemented an environmental management system and must publish an annual 

environmental declaration. 

Endodontic treatment

Treatment of the root canal with the aim of conserving a tooth whose interior is infected and/or

irreversibly damaged. To this end the root canal is prepared with the help of special rotary instru-

ments (files), disinfected, and then filled. 

Ergonomics

This discipline concerns itself with the optimization of the working environment. The goal is to

apply technical, medical, psychological, social and ecological findings in order to minimize and 

eliminate human health hazards.

Implantology 

A special branch of dentistry relating to the insertion of implants.

Implants

Implants are artificial roots which are inserted in place of missing teeth. As a rule, modern

implants are made of titanium or a titanium alloy and resemble a threaded screw. The crown

(implant superstructure) is mounted on this screw.

Inlay

A filling made of metal, ceramic or plastic (composite) which is completely surrounded by tooth

tissue. 

Intraoral X-ray

An X-ray of one or several teeth taken inside the patient’s mouth. An electronic sensor (or a 

conventional analogue film) is inserted into the oral cavity. The X-ray beam is generated by an

extraoral tube assembly.



In vitro / in vivo

In vitro test = test carried out in a laboratory. In vivo test = test performed on a living organism.

Mechatronics

An industrial discipline combining mechanical engineering and electronics.

Minimally invasive therapy

The goal of minimally invasive therapy is to reduce the extent of the wounds inflicted on the

patient. This relates both to the therapy technique and the therapy outcomes.

Onlay

A filling made of metal, ceramic or plastic (composite) which extends over one or more of the

tooth cusps.

Panoramic X-ray

Panoramic X-ray images include the entire jaw. The dentist is thus in a position to evaluate the

overall clinical situation. The X-ray generator orbits around the patient’s head. 

Periodontitis

Inflammation of the gums and the bone tissue in which the tooth is anchored. Periodontitis is the

main cause of tooth loss in adults. More than three quarters of all persons in the 35+ age group

suffer from some form of periodontal disease.

Prophylaxis

The term prophylaxis describes the application of special techniques in order to prevent the 

occurrence of disease.

Prosthetics

An area of dentistry concerned with the planning, production and placement of special devices

designed to restore the function of missing teeth and/or missing bone tissue. 

Restoration

The replacement of damaged or lost tooth tissue – for example, by means of fillings or crowns.
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Transversal slice imaging

A low-radiation imaging technique deployed in the field of surgical diagnostics. Several transverse

panoramic X-rays are combined in order to create a single three-dimensional image, thus allowing

the dentist to evaluate the overall clinical situation. 

Treatment center

The treatment chair, plus ancillary equipment such as a patient communication system (monitor

plus intraoral camera). 

Veneer

A virtually transparent ceramic sliver which is bonded to the surface of a discolored or damaged

tooth.



Financial terms

10-K / 10-Q

Comprehensive annual (10-K) or quarterly report (10-Q) of a company's performance that must be

submitted by all public companies to the Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC). 

EBIT

Earnings Before Interest and Tax.

EBITDA

Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization.

EVA

Economic Value Added – concept used for value-oriented company management. 

Gross Domestic Product (GDP)

Measure of a country’s economic performance. Denotes the newly available quantity of goods

and services produced by persons living in the country within a single year.

Management buy-out (MBO)

When the managers and/or executives of a company purchase a controlling interest in a company,

usually backed by bank loans or a financial in-vestor.

Mezzanine Loan

Financing combined of equity and outside capital. Mezzanine loans are lower-rated than other

credits. 

R&D Quota

Ratio of expenses for research and development to total revenues.

SEC

The Securities & Exchange Commission is the exchange supervisory authority in the U.S.A.

U.S. GAAP

The United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
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Locations

● U.S.A. (Charlotte, NC)

France (Paris) ●
U.K. (London) ●

Denmark (Risskov) ●

● Germany (Bensheim)

Spain (Barcelona) ●

▲ Egypt (Cairo)

▲ Saudi Arabia (Riyadh)
● China (Foshan)

Australia (Sydney) ●

● Japan (Tokyo)Korea (Seoul) ▲

▲ Russia (Moscow)

● Italy (Pistoia)

● Sirona Company
▲  Sirona Representative Office

▲ South Africa (Johannesburg)

China (Beijing) ▲

▲ UAE (Dubai)



Addresses
Sirona Companies

Germany
Sirona Dental Systems GmbH
Fabrikstraße 31
64625 Bensheim, Germany
Phone: +49 (0)6251 16 0
Fax: +49 (0)6251 16 25 91
E-mail: contact@sirona.de
Internet: www.sirona.de

U.S.A.
Sirona Dental Systems LLC
4835 Sirona Drive
Charlotte, NC 28273
P.O. Box 410100, U.S.A.
Phone: +1 704 587 04 53 
Fax: +1 704 587 93 94
E-mail: marketing@sirona.com
Internet: www.sirona.com

Denmark
Nitram Dental a/s
Sindalsvej 36
8240 Risskov, Denmark
Phone: +45 (0)87 43 90 60
Fax: +45 (0)87 43 90 61
E-mail: info@nitramdental.com
Internet: www.nitramdental.com

France
Sirona Dental Systems S.A.S.
15, Rue des Halles
75001 Paris, France
Phone: +33 (0)1 42 21 21 51
Fax: +33 (0)1 42 21 03 05
E-mail: info@sirona.fr
Internet: www.sirona.fr

United Kingdom
Sirona Dental Systems Ltd.
7 Devonhurst Place
Heathfield Terrace
Chiswick W4 4JD, United Kingdom
Phone: +44 (0)845 071 50 40
Fax: +44 (0)845 071 50 41
E-mail: info@sironadental.co.uk
Internet: www.sironadental.co.uk

Italy
Advanced Technology Research ATR s.r.l.
Via del Pescino 6
51100 Pistoia, Italy
Phone: +39 (0)573 36 42 54
Fax: +39 (0)573 36 40 02
E-mail: info@atrdental.com
Internet: www.atrdental.com

Spain
Sirona Equipos Dentales Ibérica S.A.
C. de la Fontsanta 46, bajo C-D
08970 Sant Joan d`Espí
Barcelona, Spain
Phone: +34 93 373 93 90
Fax: +34 93 419 51 34
E-mail: contacto@sironaiberica.es
Internet: www.sirona.com/es

China
Sirona Dental Systems (Foshan) Co. Ltd.
Lianhe Shishi Industry Zone, Luocun Town
Nanhai District
Foshan, Guangdong
P.O. 528227, China
Phone: +86 (0)757 86 40 01 11
Fax: +86 (0)757 86 40 06 59
E-mail: contact@sironafoshan.com.cn
Internet: www.sironafoshan.com.cn

Japan
Sirona Dental Systems K.K.
Takanawa Ono Building 3F
15-21, Takanawa 2 chome
Minato-ku
Tokyo 108-0074, Japan
Phone: +81 (0)3 54 75 22 55
Fax: +81 (0)3 54 75 22 66
E-mail: info@sirona.co.jp
Internet: www.sirona.co.jp

Australia 
Sirona Dental Systems Pty., Ltd.
Unit 35, 28 Barcoo Street
Chatswood, Sydney
NSW 2067, Australia
Phone: +61 (0)2 94 96 51 00
Fax: +61 (0)2 94 17 01 16
E-mail: info@sirona.com.au
Internet: www.sirona.com.au

Sirona Representative Offices

Egypt
Sirona Representative Office
Dr. Bassel Khulief
P.O. Box 76
Al Andalus 11817
Cairo, Egypt
Phone: +20 (0)2270 82 41
Fax: +20 (0)2270 82 41
E-mail: sironaeg@tedata.net.eg
Internet: www.sirona.com

China
Sirona Representative Office
Room 718, Lido Commercial Building
Jiangtai Road, Chao Yang District
Beijing 100004, China
Phone: +86 (0)10 64 36 73 85
Fax: +86 (0)10 64 36 73 87
E-mail: friedrich.schnetzer@sirona.de
Internet: www.sirona.cn

Korea
Sirona Representative Office
c/o Shinhung Co. Ltd.
10-3, Jungnim-Dong, Jung-Gu
Seoul, Korea 100-858
Phone: +82 (0)2 63 66 21 21

+82 (0)2 63 66 21 30
Fax: +82 (0)2 63 66 21 31
E-mail: wolfgang.braun@shinhung.co.kr
Internet: www.sirona.com

Russia
Sirona Representative Office
ul. Timura Frunze 16 Str. 3
190021 Moscow, Russia
Phone: +7 095 246 97 60
Fax: +7 095 246 64 92
E-mail: sironadental@mtu-net.ru
Internet: www.sirona.ru

Saudi Arabia
Sirona Representative Office
Dr. Mohammed Yacoub
P.O. Box 295734
Riyadh 11351, Saudi Arabia
Phone: +966 (0)1 463 14 22
Fax: +966 (0)1 466 06 76
E-mail: sironasa@sps.net.sa
Internet: www.sirona.com

South Africa
Sirona Representative Office
Andy Cyprianos
P.O. Box 1345
Cresta
Johannesburg 2118, South Africa
Phone: +27 (0)114 86 15 69
Fax: +27 (0)839 16 01 50
E-mail: andyc.sirona@telkomsa.net
Internet: www.sirona.com

United Arabian Emirates
Sirona Representative Office
Dr. Amro Adel
P.O. Box 211884
The Greens
Al Samar 2, App. 009
Dubai, United Arabian Emirates
Phone: +971 (0)50 55 977 80
Fax: +971 (0)4 368 20 89
E-mail: amro.sirona@mailme.ae
Internet: www.sirona.com



Fairs and Events in 2006

January

Yankee Dental Boston, U.S.A.

February

141st CDS Midwinter Meeting Chicago, U.S.A.

UAE International Dental Conference 
& Arab Dental Exhibition (AEEDC 2006)
Dubai, United Arabian Emirates

March

Pacific Dental Conference
Vancouver, Canada

Expodental Madrid, Spain

CEREC CAD/CAM Restaurationen 
20-jähriges Jubiläums-Symposium
Berlin, Germany

Hinman Atlanta, U.S.A.

SCANDEFA Copenhagen, Denmark

April

Ontario Dental Association
Toronto, Canada

IDEM Singapore, Singapore

CDA South Anaheim, U.S.A.

AAO New Orleans, U.S.A.

May

WID Vienna, Austria

SIDEX Seoul, South Korea

Amici di Brugg Rimini, Italy

CAOM Victoria, Canada

JDC Montreal, Canada

June

Sino Dental Beijing, China

September

3rd Korea International Dental 
Exhibition & Conference (KDX)
Seoul, South Korea

Norddental Hamburg, Germany

Dental Expo Moscow, Russia

Canadian Association of 
Orthodontists (CAO) Montreal, Canada

CDA – North San Francisco, U.S.A.

Infodental Düsseldorf, Germany

FDI World Dental Congress Shenzhen, China

Fachdental Leipzig, Germany

Dentalinforma Hannover, Germany

October

Expodental Milan, Italy

International Dental Showcase
London, United Kingdom

Pragodent Prag, Czech Republic

American Dental Association (ADA)
Las Vegas, U.S.A.

Fachdental Südwest Stuttgart, Germany

Berlindentale Berlin, Germany

CEREC CAD/CAM Restorations 20 Year
Anniversary Symposium, Las Vegas, U.S.A.

November

Fachdental Bayern Munich, Germany

Infodental Mitte Frankfurt, Germany

ADF Paris, France

World Dental Show Tokyo, Japan

Greater New York Dental Meeting
New York, U.S.A.
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For detailed information about trade fairs and industry events go to www.sirona.com.
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Sirona Group 

Fabrikstrasse 31

64625 Bensheim, Germany

Tel.: +49 (0) 6251 16 0

Fax: +49 (0) 6251 16 25 91

contact@sirona.de  

www.sirona.com
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